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Report on Operations
Consolidated Financial Statements as at 31/12/2022

Dear Shareholders, the notes to the financial statements provide information regarding the financial statements as at 31 December
2022; in this document, in compliance compliant with the provisions of art. 2428 of the (IL) Civil Code, we provide you with
information concerning the situation of Next Geosolutions Europe group (hereinafter also referred to as the “Group™) and information
on its business outlook. This report, prepared with values expressed in units of Euro, is presented together with the consolidated
financial statements in order to provide income, equity, financial and managerial information of the Group accompanied, where
possible, with historical elements and prospective assessments.

Macroeconomic Scenario

While in 2020-2021 the pandemie, the climate crisis and inflation were the main topics for governments and businesses around the
world, 2022 was strongly characterised by the outbreak of the Russia-Ukraine conflict. which disrupted many governmental plans
and strongly influenced the global economy, with the main fallout being felt in Europe and in particular in the energy sector, as well
as, of course, in the military sector. In fact, the strategic pame of war is also being played out heavily on the energy front, forcing
many couniries and the EU as a whole to review, often accelerating, their infrastructure plans for energy transition and independence,

In general, inernational trade in goods and services by volume, which increased by 10.4% in 2021, has more than recovered its pre-
pandemic levels. International demand for goods and services grew by about 5.4 %o this vear while it is expected to slow down to 2.3
%o in 2023,

The high kevel of inflation and the uncertainty over the development of the aforementioned conflict are charscteristic clements of
the current interational scenario and are slowing down world economy, which is therefore expected to decelerate this year and next.

The situation in Europe

In the euro area, the GDP grew by about 0.2 % at the end of the year, slowing down compared to previous months, At the national
level, the GDP trend showed a general improvement characterised by different intensities: +0.5% in [taly, +0.4% in Germany and
+0.2% in France and Spain.

The recovery of pre-crisis activity levels appears to be generalised across countries, albeit at different levels of intensity. IF we
compare the value of the GDP in Nov. 2022 with the average of 2019, ltaly showed a marked improvement (+1.3%), higher than the
main European cconomies (+1.0% France, +0.4% Germany and -1.6% Spain). In the curo area, inflation slowed down for the first
time in November, to 10.0% from 10.6% in October,

According to the European Commission, the recovery in production rates is thought to lead to a significant increase in the euro area’s
GDP in 2022 (+3.2 %), but it is believed that this will be followed by a marked slowdown in 2023 (+0.3 %).

Last year, the exchange rate stood al USD 1.18 per euro, while 2022 saw a gradual depreciation of the euro to USD 1.06. According
1o this forecast, the value could fall further to 1.04 in 2023, Brent crude oil prices, which stood at USD 70.7 per barrel last vear, show
a sharp rise this vear and then partially decling in 2023 (LISD 103.7 and USD 6.0, respectively).
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The economy in ltaly

In 2022, the expansion phase of the ltalian economy continued, its level far exceeding the pre-crisis level. The increase in GDF was
supporied almost entirely by domestic demand, which, net of stocks, made 8 positive contribution (+1.6%), while net foreign demaund
made a negative contribution (-1.3%), associated with a strong increase in imports (+4.2%) and only a marginal improvement in
exports (+0,1%).

In November 2022 inflation steod at 8,1% and inflation, excluding energy goods, at 4.1%. Corporate spending on investments also
showed a deceleration, also influenced by the worsening mark-up.

In the coming vear, assuming & deceleration of energy commodity prices, it is thought that the favourable investment trend, also
supported by public investment related to the implementation of the ltalian National Recovery and Resilience Plan (PNRR). will be
the main driver of the economy, while it is thought that net foreign demand will still make a negative contribution,

It is believed that, in 2022, the GDF shows a further improvement (+3.9%), mainly driven by domestic demand. The expansionary
phase of the Italian economy will decelerate in 2023 when the GDP will increase by 0.4%, sustained almost entirely by the
contribution of domestic demand (+0.5 %), while net foreign demand will make a slightly negative contribution (-0.1 %a).

In this scenario, the trade balance is expected to remain in defieit in 2022-2023 (-1.1% in both years).

Reference context

As mentioned above, the year 2022 was mainly characterised by the Russia-Ukraine conflict, which, together with the other factors
mentioned earlier, affected the entire global economy and especially that of the European continent, with particular reference to the
energy sector, which is where Next Geosolutions operales.

As a result of the restrictive measures in the energy field linked to the aforementioned conflict, which is still ongoing, scveral
European countries and the European Union itself have launched and/or intensified initiatives and investments aimed at fostering
energy transition and independence. also in order to strongly reduce Europe’s dependence on Russian energy sources. which are
based almost exclusively on fossil hydrocarbons (petrol and, above all, gas).

Against this backdrop, Next Geosolutions had the opportunity to consolidate its market position in its three core energy sectors:
submarine power cables (known as “interconnectors”), offshore renewable energy (“renewables/wind™} and the traditional ofTshore
il & gas market, all of which are trending upwards, albeit at different growth rates,

In slight but steady recovery is the Offshore 0l & Gas sector, after more than a decade of substantial stagnation. In this context, in
2022 Next Geosolutions completed work begun the previous year on what are the largest subsea gas transport infrastructures
currently active in the Mediterranean, namely the TAP (Trans-Adriatic Pipeline) pipeline between Albania and Puglia, which serves
to supply Ialy with gas from Azerbaijan, and the TMPC (Trans-Mediterranean Pipeline Company) pipeline, which transparts
Algerian gas between Tunisia and Sicily.

Also in this area, even more significant was the geomorphological and environmental survey project carried out for EMI Cyprus ofi
the island of Cyprus in a joint venture with HPC ltaly and other local companies. This assignment, in fact, represented an opportunity
to work on a new hydrocarbon production field, which was also widely publicised in the media (ICronos, Zeus and Perseus wells),
thus testifving 1o Next Geosolutions' participation in the resumption of investment in this sector.

However, the Offshore Oil & Gas sector remains the smallest of the three markets, i.e. with respect to the production of renewable
energy af sea, with panticular reference to offshore wind farms (OWFs), and the transport of clectricity by means ol submarine power
cables, both interconnecting various couniries and/or islands and those related 1o the development of the aforementioned O'WFs.

Looking at this latter secior, it has been recorded that the market for submarine power cables (especially high voltage ones) will
reach USD 22,00 billion in 2025, thus registering an annual growth rate of over 11%. As illustrated above, this increase is strongly
driven by the growing need for interconnections between national electricity grids, for both economic and geopolitical reasons, and
the increasing demand for energy generated by offshore plants using renewable energy sources.

In this scenario, the Group was once again heavily involved in contributing to the construction of important submarine electricity
interconnection infrastructures, providing strategic support services that saw the heavy involvement of the Group®s naval units, such
as: geophysical and geotechnical surveys, surveys for the search and identification of unexploded ordnance on the seabed (UXO
survey), “front preparation” activities, i.e. preparatory activities for the laying of submarine cables, and other similar services.
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More specifically, the projects that featured most prominently in 2022 in this area are the Elba-Fiombine link for Prysmizn and end
customer Terna, and the Tyrrhenian Link East between Campania and Sicily, again for Prysmian and with Terna as the end customer,
the latter of which is still under construction, with the simultaneous deployment of three offshore vessels plus other smaller vessels
in the coastal landing areas of the cables.

However, the area of greatest commitment in 2022, with a turnover share of more than 50%, was renewable energies, which currently
consist almost exclusively of offshore wind farms.

In this regard, it is worth mentioning that, with already considerable growth over the last five years, analysts predict further
exponential development of this sector globally until at least 2030, with an expected average annual growth of 15.7%. Excluding
couritries such as China, the USA and other South-East Asian countries, most of this development will take place in countries such
as Germany, the UK, the Netherlands, Denmark, Ireland, Poland, Belgium, France and Norway, In ltaly, too, this development is
expecied to grow significantly, although to a lesser extent than in the countries mentioned above,

In this area, the work that most characierised the company's operational activity in 2022 was as follows: the two voluminous and
complex multi-vear contracts with TenneT (the Dutch national grid operator) for the implementation of their national offshore wind
farm programme, which started in 2020 and will continue for at least another two years, the geophysical and peotechnical survey
contract (still ongoing) on the Italian offshore windfarms Hannibal and Scipio on behalf of the client COP (Copenhagen Offshore
Partners) and its partners (7SeasMed, Ichnusa, Eni, CDP), the contract for geophysical and environmental surveys on three offshore
windfarms in Puglia and Calabria on behalf of the client Falck Renewables (now Renantis) and their Spanish partners BlueFloat,
and, lastly, the contract for UXO and environmental surveys in the Polish sector ol the Baltic Sea on behalf of the German developer
RWE (the second largest global developer after Orsted), in partnership with the University of Gdansk in Poland and other minor
local companies. Next Geosolutions is strongly committed to consolidating the already excellent relationships of trust and
collaboration with all the above-mentioned international customers, with the intention of increasing the order pertfolio with new
work, also in other areas of the globe where they operaie.

Geographically, Mext Geosolutions™ main areas of operation remain the Morth European seas, i.e. the North Sea, the Baltic Sea and
the Eastern Atlantic Ocean, and of course the Mediterranean Sea, with a special focus on the Baltic Sea and Eastern Mediterrancan
areas, the former being particularly promising for offshore wind farms and the latter for the oil & gas and submarine cable markets.

In general. the commercial and business development efforts have further consolidated the company”s position in the national and
international market, establishing it as the leading Nalian company in the seetor and as an international contractor of reference for
all major industry operators: from national grid operators throughout Europe, e, TSOs (Transmission System Operators), to
companies developing offshore wind farms, known as “Developers”, to companies specialising in the construction of offshore wind
farms and/or the installation of submarine cables,

As we have scen, also in the field of offshore oil and gas, Next Geosolulions has maintained a prominent position, actively
participating in the construction of the most important European energy infrastructures of the moment and in the resumption of
investments on new offshore hydrocarbon fields.

Also worth mentioning is the positive expansion of the customer base, with the entry of new prestigious international companies,
such as COP, Renantis/BlueFloat, and RWE.

As far as new investments are concerned, in addition to the acquisition of new and sophisticated surveying instrumentation, all
financial, technical, operational and R&D efforts aimed af the realisation of the two largest investments for the two-yvear period
2022-2023, namely the NG Driller deep drilling geotechnical vessel and the HS-ROV Superior high-speed ROV,

Both of these long and demanding development and deployment programmes were launched in 2022, but will reach their full
economic impact and full development and deployment in the vears 2023/24. The former will make it possible for the group to
expand its economic offer to 8 complementary and very promising but hitherto uncovered sector, ie. deep geotechnics, and to
strongly increase its competitiveness in the “traditional’ sector of geophysical survey and UUXO with the use of high-speed ROV,
currently available to only two other competing contractors globally.

In order to cope with this development and the increased complexity and size of the projects, the acquisition campaign for new
personnel in various sectors, and particularly in the technical-operational sector, continued in 2022 and is expected to continue in
the coming vears.
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The Group’s values

Assumption of responsibility

Constani commitment to achieving concrele resulis, without delegating the problems that can be solved within one’s own area of
COMPEIENCe UPSLTEaI,

Innovation

Developing innovative solutions and promoting new ways to improve existing processes and systems, in order to strengthen the
Group's positioning on the market

Customer

The Group considers the customer and their satisfaction an essential value. Being available to listen to the customer, so as to
anticipate and guickly respond to its needs.

Proactivity
Being proactive by anticipating and affecting events. Seizing and developing opportunitics that arise within the reference business
and formulating proposals and initiatives that ane useful to the pursuit of purposes.

Integration

Working in a “team™ with team spirit, thus minimising conflicts and maximising the effectiveness of exchenging information in the
pursuit of a commeon result. The “team” represents the greatest and most valuable resource of the Group.

Transparency

Ensuring typically correct business conduct: maintaining correct and loyal, imternal and external, relations by promoting the
circulation of information.

Excellence

Developing skills continuousty by taking responsibility for a project of own professional growth in order (o contribute o the success.
Care for quality and attention to safety are elements that have always distinguished the Group.

Group information

The Group operates in the sector of international marine geoscience and offshore construction support serviees, combining the
knowledge, experience and resources of teams and individuals with over 30 years of suecess in the offshore industry with advanced
technical and operational capabilities.

The structure of Next Geosolutions Europe group is shown below in graphic form:

\) NEXTGEO

Mext Geosclutions
Eurcpe SpA

FEr) (o) (F5=) (] [

The following table summarises information as at 31 December 2022 on the name, registered office, share capital and
shareholding in the share capital held by Next Geosolutions Europe SpA Group:

Company Registered office
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ket Gepsolulions Eurape SpA Maples - Haly Ling-by-line Eura 500,000 Parani company
Phaenix Offshore Sr Maplas - Haky Lines-biy-limd Eura 10,328 100%
Seashiptankes Srl Maples - Haly Linse-ty-line Ewn 10,000 B0%
Haxt Geosolulions UKCS Lid Lendon - England Ling-by-ling Pound sieding 1,000 100%
Hext Geosolutions BY fjmuiden - The Lire-by-line Euwn 20,000 100%

doimnily coniroied Compaines

MaxtiPod S0 Maples - Haky Proporticnal Euro 10,000 50%

The Group also holds minority equity investments in the companies controlled by the parent company Finimm Srl and Marnavi
Shipping Management India Pvt Ltd and in the consortia Area Tech, Cluster Blue Italian Growth and Mar. Te. Scavi.

Significant economic and financial data for the year 2022

The financial year ended 31 December 2022 showed a net profit of EUR 7,387,382, of which EUR 7,357,462 pertaining to the group
and EUR 29,920 pertaining to minority interests.

In its assets, Next Geosolutions Europe Spa group has a total fixed asset value of EUR Euro 26,084,553,

Revenues from sales and services, amounting to EUR 52,616,354, are divided into the business categories below; 54% offshore
renewahles'wind, 30% submarine power cables (known as “interconnectors™). 10% offshore oil and gas and the remaining 6% in
other activities. The breakdown of revenues by geographical area is as follows: 48% in Italy and 52% abroad.

Value of production, which includes the change in contract work in progress of EUR 12,739,901, amounted to ELR 67,224,698,
Income before financial management shows a positive difference between value and cost of production of ELR 8,377,043,

The Group's shareholders’ equity amounts to EUR 20,030,963, net financial debt is EUR 19,385,682 and current assets exceed
current liabilities by ELIR 11,377,554,

The economic and financial figures above show the positive performance achieved by the Group during the financial year 2022,

~ Significant events

At a macro-gconomic level, the year ended 31 December 2022, as reporied above, was characterised by the conflict, which is sill
ongoing, between Russia and Ukraine, which has led to and continues to lead to increases in prices, mainly of raw materials and
energy, as well as interruptions and turbulence in the functioning of international trade chains, which at present have notl impacted
the Group's profitability.

The year 2022 represented for the Group the year of business consolidation and strengthening of the produetion strueture as a result
of obtaining orders with & multi-vear duration within the identified geographical areas.

Sales revenue and production value are significantly high and the profitability indicators express the positive results of operations.
EBITDA is 16% of the value of production while the net result is 11% of the value of production.

The resources generated by operations, in line with the Group's development strategies, were mainly committed 1o the following
investmenis:

¢  (Creation of a Drilling vessel through the development, realisation and implementation of a high-depth drilling system called
Drilling Rig and purchase of a second hand vessel called “Sea Trowt” and related structural modifications for the implementation
of the above sysiem.

+  Realisation of FAST ROV Remotely piloted underwater vehicle capable of reaching higher than standard speeds.
* Construction of an ASV, a small vessel for nearshore marine surveys in autonomous mode.
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* [Investments in high-tech equipment and mstrumentation,

From the point of view of the capital/financial structure, there is a substantial balance between equity and debt and between the
maturity of financing sources and the duration of capital investments. In line with the major investment projects launched in the
financial vear, the group obtained medivm- and long-term financing in the amount of EUR 10,600,000 in 2022.

The entrepreneurial project is still focusing on further business developments, for the type of services offered to various Customers
and for increasing attention to research and development projects.

Assets/liabilities and financial position

In order to better understand the Group®s assetsliahilities and financial situation. a reclassification statement of the Balance Sheet
is provided below.

As permitted by the rules governing the preparation of consolidated financial statements (referred 1o in accounting standard O1C
17}, the presentation of comparative data from the previous year is not required when preparing consolidated financial statements
for the first time. Therefore, the following table does not show the comparative data for the previous yvear and the changes in the
balances of the items during the vear,

Balance Sheet Assets

Itam Financial year 2022 b3
' NET WORKING CAPITAL 96, 458 478 TI.74%
Immediate ligudiy 10,248,608 B28%
Cash and cash equivalents 10,248 EOB B.2E%
Deterred liguidiy 25,857 527 20 B
Recaivables from Shareholders - 0.00%
Short-lerm cument recesnvables 23,732 897 19.12%
Shori-ierm non-cument

e - 0.00%

Tangible fixed assats held for

sale - 0.00%
Financial assels - QD0
‘Accrued income and deferead

8 = 2,124 830 17 1%
Irventonies B0 362 343 48.65%
FIXED ASSETS 27,630,787 22.26%
Intangible fixed asseis 2,449 547 187T%
tangible fixed assats 23,392 832 18,85%
Financial fixed assels 242 174 0.208%
Medium-Nong-lemm currem

tecaivabies 1,548,234 1.25%
TOTAL ASSETS 124,129,265 100.00%
Balance Sheet Liabilities

Itam Financial year 2022 %
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tom Financial year 2022 o
CURRENT LIABILITIES B5,120,924 BE.ST%
Shor-term payables 83,457 £55 B7.23%
e i 1,663,260 1.34%
CONSOLIDATED LIABILITES 18,877,378 15.20%
Medium-long-term payables 16,658,163 13.58%
Provisions for risks and charges B11,541 0E5%
Employes Severance Indemnities 1,307,674 1.058%
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 20,030,963 16.14%
Group shareholdars' equity 16,970,392 16.09%
Group capitsl and resarves 12,612,930 10,168%
Proft (loss) for the year 7,357,462 5.93%
‘ ~a Minary sharsheldars’ equiy 50,571 0.05%
H « Capital and minarity inlerest 30.651 0.02%
= | m:‘mmu' ey 20,820 0.02%
TOTAL SOURCES 124,129,265 100.00%
’ Main indicators of the assets/liabilities and financial position

O the basis of the previous reclassification, the financial statement indicators below are caleulated:

INDICATOR Financlal yaar 2022
Financial dependance ratio B
financial independance ratic 16%:
Curren| assets - current lkabilities 11,377 654
Cash ralio 1.13
Fhoad assat fo mquity capital margin (7.500,824)
Long-term solvency rallo ora
Fixed assel 1o equity capital and medium/Aong-term debt 11.377 554
margin ;

(Equity + long term labiliies) - fixed assats 1.41
Net financial dabd (MFD) 16,385 682
NFD/Shareholdars’ equity 0.87
Net working capital 13,332 062

Economic situation

In order to better understand the Group's management result. a reclassification statement of the Income Statement is provided
below.,
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Income Statement

Consalidaed fimancial stasements @ ai 3171222022

Itom izt 4 %
VALUE OF PRODUCTION E7,224,898 100%-
- Consumplion of raw materials 5,895,002 2%
- Ganeral Expanses 41,808 038 B2%
ADDED VALUE 19,521,628 28%
- Other revenues 1,868, 243 3%
- Personnel costs: B,820.581 13%
- Provisions - 0%
EBITDA 8032824 13%
mﬁm:huﬂm depreciation and write- 2,261,260 3%
mm RESULY fiet 8,771,564 10%
+ Other revenues 1,088,243 3%
= Differant operating chargas 262,764 0%
mm INTEREST AND B,377.043 12%
+ Financial income 1,670 L]
+ Exchange gasns and lossas (288.71T) 0%
il SR SRR
- Finangial charges £43.058 1%
INCOME BEFORE ADJUSTMENTS

OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 7438838 1%
LIABILITIES

+ Value adjusiments to inancial assets . %
and liabilities

PROFIT BEFORE TAXES A6 B3I 1%
- Income taxes for the year 48 456 0%
NET PROFIT 7,387,382 11%

Main indicators of the economic situation

i

553 398

g

Om the basis of the previous reclassification, the financial statement indicators below are calculated:

ROE %
ROS 12%
ROA ™
EBITDA 10,638,303
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INDEX H‘H!
MFD { EBITDA .77
EBIT 7AME 838
Mel financial expenses | NFD 3%

Disclosure pursuant to art. 2428 of the (It.) Civil Code

The information specifically required by the provisions of art. 2428 of the (11.) Civil Code is detailed below.

Main risks and uncertainties to which the Group is exposed

Pursuant to the first paragraph of art. 2428 of the (It) Civil Code, a deseription of the main risks and uncentainties to which the
Group is exposed is provided below,

Market risk

Market risk consists of the possibility that changes in exchange rates, interest rates, or prices may have a negative effect on the
value of assets, liabilities or expected cash flows. The Group’s activities are mainly focused on the "Renewables”, “Inlerconnector
cables™ and “Oil & Gas™ markets. related to the environmental, telecommunications and energy sectors.

Exchange-rate risk

Exposure to the risk of changes in exchange rates derives from the company’s operations in currencies other than Euro (mainly
pound sterling - GPB - but also US dollar - USD) and affects the economic result due to the different value of costs and revenues
in currency, in comparison to the time when the price conditions were defined {economic risk), and due to the conversion of trade
or financial receivables/payables denominated in foreign currencies {transaction risk). The purpose of the Group’s management is
1o minimise the economic and transactional exchange rate risk through a balance of the Group’s internal currency balance, which
is obtained through the redefinition of asset and liability contracts with customers and suppliers defined in foreign currencies (mainfy
pound sterling and US dollar).

Interest rate risk

Fluctuations in interest rates affect corporate profitability and the purpose of the Group’s management is that of minimising the risk
of interest rate fluctuations in the pursuit of profit targets. The Group analyses its exposure o interest rate risk on a dynamic basis,
simulating its financing requirements and estimated cash flows in different scenatios, on the basis of economie expectations, existing
positions and potential renewals, allernative financing, hedging policies and potential refinancing.

Credit risk

The credit risk represents the risk that one party, which assumed a monetary obligation, will not fulfil this obligation. This risk is
evident, above all, in relation to trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents and in relations with banks and other fnancial
institutions, Through careful monitoring of the credit situation, this risk, also taking into account the standing of customers, can be
considered low.,
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Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the company is not able to meet paymenl commitments because of the difficulty of raising funds
(funding liquidity risk) or liquidating assets on the market (asset liguidity risk). The consequence is & negative impact on the
economic result in the event that the undenaking is forced to incur additional costs in order to meet its commitments or, as an
extréme consequence, a situation of insolvency that jeopardises the undertaking’s ability to continue as a going concern. The
objective of the management bodies of the Group companies is to set up, within the framework of the “Company budget™, a financial
structure that, consistently with business objectives and the limits defined by the Budget (in terms of maximum percentage level of
leverage and minimum perceniage levels of the ratio of medium-long term debt to total debt and of fixed-rate debt to total medium-
long term debt), guarantees an adequate level of liquidity for the Group, minimising the related opportunity cost and maintaining a
balanee in terms of duration and composition of debt. Through the credit system, the Group has maintained aceess to sources of
financing at competitive costs despite the significant deterioration of the external reference framework, which led to a tightening ol
the credit market during the year and strong tensions on the spreads applied. Actions o implement the “Budget™ made it possible to
cope with the phases of most significant market turbulence, thus pursuing the purpose of a balance in terms of duration,

At present, through the diversification of sources and the availability of credit lines, the Group believes that it has access to financing
sources that are sufficient to satisfv even unpredictable financial needs. In this regard, reference should be made to what is described
and illustrated in the paragraph focused on financial statements analysis.

Operational risk

International operations

The activities carried out by Group companies in Italy and abroad are subject to compliance with the rules and regulations valid
within the territory in which they operate, incleding laws implementing international protocols or conventions. The issuance of new
regulations or changes to existing regulations could require the Group to adopt stricter standards, and this circumstance could entail
costs 1o adapt the production struetures or the characteristics of the services offered or even limit the Group's operations with a
consequent negative effect on its growth prospects. In particular, in relation to activities carried out in countries other than lialy, in
favour of foreign customers or with foreign suppliers, the Group’s services could be subject to the application of sanctions and other
protectionist regulations by States or the infemational community.

Environment, health and safery

In particular, the Group's activities are subject to compliance with current environmental, health and safety regulations. Failure 1o
comply with the regulations in force entails penal and/or civil sanctions against those responsible and, in some cases of violation ol
safety regulations, against the companies, in accordance with a European model of objective corporate liability that has also been
transposed in Italy (Legislative Decree no. 231/2001). Environmental, health and safety regulations have a significant impact on the
Group's operations, and the charges and costs associated with the nccessary actions to be taken to comply with these obligations
will continue to be a significant cost ilem in future years. Particularly in ltaly, recent legislation on occupational health and safety
has introduced new obligations that impact on the management of the Group’s activities and, in particular. on relations with
stakeholders. In addition, the repercussions on liability allocation models are considerable. In particular, the legislation has
emphasised the value of certified organisational and management models, attributing thereto an exemption of the company’s
administrative liability. in the event of violations of legislative provisions concerning occupational health and safety,

Litigation
The Group may be a party in civil and administrative proceedings and legal actions related to the normal course of its business.
Based on the information currently available, the group considers thiz risk 10 be low.

Risk of business interruption related to the s infectiou

The spread on a global scale of epidemiological or pandemic emergencies affecting the population (i.e, COVID- 19) may lead, in
addition 1o a deterioration in the macroeconomic envirenment, to slowdowns in the Group’s business activities. resulting from
measures issued by domestic and foreign authorities, unavailability of personnel, difficulties encountered by customers and
discontinuities in the supply chain. The management closely monitors the development of these phenomena and takes appropriaie
action to preserve the health of personnel and ensure the Group®s operations, However, although the Group has put in place measures
to ensure the protection of its employees and business continuity, it cannot be assured that these safeguards are fully effective.

Repea on Operations 10




]

NEXT GEOSOLUTIONS EURDPE SPA Consolidaied financial staements & at 31123022

The Group has processes in place to support the identification, management and monitoring of events with potential significant
impacts on resources and the business, with the aim of maximising the timeliness and effectiveness of actions taken. This risk is
Loy,

Risk of climate change

Climate change, environmental protection and the consequent evolution of the reference context may lead to the identification of
rigks for the Group and require preventive actions on certain types of processes and services to reduce their effects. The Group’s
activities, in order to ensure the transition to a low-emission economy, may be subject to transition and physical risks, with a possible
impact on business processes, as well as on the services offered. Company sites and assets may also be affected by catastrophic
natural events generated by the effects of climate change. The Group pursues an industrial strategy geared towards the continuous
improvement of its systems and services 1o reduce energy consumption and atmospheric emissions, and adopts technical and
organisational measures aimed at reducing its environmental impact. The management puts in place detailed and frequent
monitoring and control of the infrastructures and facilities wsed, and has defined operational procedures for handling certain
environmental emergencies (e.g., fire emergencics, flooding, ete.). This risk is low.

Cvybersecurity

Companies are being called upon to face the cybersecurity risks arizsing from the continuous evolution of the cyber threat and the
increase in its scope, also in the face of increasing digitalisation and the greater spread of remote working in companies. Information
technology incidents, including in the supply chain, business interruption, personal data leakage and loss of information, even of
siralegic imporiance, can compromise the business and even the image of the Group, especially in the case of theft of confidential
data. The Group manages cybersecurity through specialised processes, procedures and technologies for predicting, preventing,
detecting and managing potential threats and for responding to them, This risk is low.

Main non-financial indicators

Pursuant to the second paragraph of art. 2428 of the (IL) Civil Code, we certify that, for the specific activity carried owut and for
better understanding of the Group's position, performance and operating results, the illustration of non-financial indicators is not
deemed to be significant.

Disclosure on the environment

The year 2022 saw the mitigation but not the disappesrance of the health emergency related to the spread of the Covid=19 virus. In

order to continue to further streamline the management of this situation and the continued, albeit minimal, adoption of Remote

working {or Agile working) for part of the workforce, Next Geosolutions Europe Group has continued to implement a series of

safeguards, measures and activities aimed at ensuring the health of its employees, maintaining as much direct contact as possible

with its associates.

As the emergency continued, the Group continued to take every measure to minimise the risk of the disease spreading and ensure a

safe working environment. The security protocol was updated, and the committee dedicated 1o managing the current situation was

confirmed, with various protocols, briefings and initiatives, including in subsequent revisions, 1o cover the situation on time;

«  the evolution of the pandemic situation in the areas of interest of the Group's activities:

+  the growing knowledge of the scientific community in relation to the problem and the related preventive and protective
measures ordered by the Health Authority, including the vaccination campaign;

+  the latest resirictions imposed by international, national and regional authorities, in response to which the Company continued
1o guarantee business continuity and maximum proteetion solutions for offshore personnel:

+  compliance with the latest ltalian and intemational protocols and industry guidelines and verification of the application of the
rules,
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To reduce use of public transport to a minimum, the employees of the Naples office were given access to a private carpark at the

expense of the Parent Company, Nexi Geosolutions Europe S.p.A., 10 make movements safer and healthier but also easier for the

emplovees themselves,

Please note that there were no deaths or significant accidents at work, nor charges relating to occupational diseases for emplovees

or former employees during 2022,

Dwring the closing year, the Group did not cause damage to the environment nor was it sanctioned for environmental crimes. The

Management manages its own activities in the pursuit of excellence in the field of Quality, Environment and Safety, with the aim

of continuously improving its performances in terms of customer satisfaction, environmental protection, worker health and safety.

Mext Geosolutions Europe Group is committed:

*  to operating in compliance with the laws in force that are applicable 1o its activity, with the company specifications and
standards and 1w taking any legislative developments into consideration;

+ o managing its own processes by using the best available techniques;

* o minimising the impact of its activities on the environment;

*  to recognising that the customer’s needs and the evaluation of his’her satisfaction are priority reference criteria to be adopted
in the implementation of services,

This commitment is fulfilled through:

+  the design, implementation and maintenance of an integrated management sysicm;

* the planning and implementation of periodic checks and reviews of said management svstem:

+  systematic monitoring of customer satisfaction;

+  the possibility for “potential™ customers to access “customer satisfaction” data;

+  the delineation of objectives and targets for quality, health and safety of people and environmental protection, which are to be
achieved through specific, perindically revised. programs.

The Group has always hogely committed to issues related to the safety of workers and of its production assets, basing its sirategy

on:

*  the dissemination of a culture of safety within the organisation;

+  policies, specific dedicated operating procedures and proper management systems, aligned with the best international standards;

*  control, prevention and protection from exposure to risk:

*  minimisation of exposure to risks in every productive activity.

During the financial year, the Parent Company Next Geosolutions Europe SpA maintained certification according to the

international standards IS0 9001:2015, 14001:2015 and 45001:2018.

Information on personnel management

Mo significant information is reported on personnel management. In 2022 there were no deaths or significant accidents at work, nor
charges relating to occupational diseases for employees or former employecs.

The Organisation, Management and Control Model (It. Legislative Decree no 231 of 8 June 2001

On 29 May 2020, the Parent Company approved the Organisation, Management and Control Model consistent with (It) Legislative
Decree 231/01, composed of a General Part and four Special Parts, as well as a Disciplinary System suited to sanctioning any non-
compliance with measures in the Model (pursuant to ans. 6, paragraph 2 and 7, paragraph 4 of {I1.) Legislative Decree 231/2001).
The Organisation Model for the prevention and management of risks linked to committing offences in the interest of the company
was completed by the appointment of a Supervisory Body which, as set forth by ar. 6 of (L) Legislative Decree 231/2001, has been
attributed awtonomous powers of action and control, in order to supervise the Model's functioning and compliance, also handling
its continual updating. In the course of 2022, the Supervisory Board of the Parent Company Mext Geosolutions Europe SpA carried
out several training and awareness-raising sessions for personnel on 231 topics, and held regular meetings to monitor the application
of documents, tools and controls aimed at limiting the risks of offences.

Code of Ethics

The company has confirmed the adoption of a Code of Ethics, i.c a document establishing the general ethical principles, reference
values or the rules of conduct with the main stakeholders. The document was processed to ensure that the fundamental ethical values
of Next Geosolutions Europe Group be clearly defined and constitute a basic clement of company euliure, and the conduct standard
for all its Associates when conducting their business and activities,
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The document is updated periodically based on organisational or regulatory changes.

GDPR Model

The Group, with specific reference to the Evropean Regulation 2016479 “on the protection of natural persons with regard o the
processing of personal data” (hereinafter alse “GDPR™), has implemented an organisational model for the protection of personal
data. More specifically, the Parent Company has approved the documeni GDPR Assessment — Focus on the main IT security
measures, the Repgister of processing activities pursuant to art. 30 of the GDPR and the Privacy Policy. The personal data protection
organisational model has been completed by the appointment of a “DATA PROTECTION OFFICER™ (DFO) or “PERSON
RESPONSIBLE FOR DATA PROTECTION” (RPD), who, as indicated in article 39 of Reg. (ELT) 20016/67% 15 responsible for
Informing and providing advice to the data controller or processor and to employees, supervising compliance with the organisational
madel for the protection of personnel data, providing, when required, an opinion on its impact on data protection and supervising
its performance, cooperating with control authoritics and acting as a contact point for control authorities for privacy matters, The
main task of the DPOYRPD is w0 increase the level of Privacy awareness in the Controller and its structure.

To date, the Model is still in the implementation phase in order to conclude the process that will lead the Parent Company 1o finalise
corporate privacy comphance.

CSR and Sustainability Report

For the second consecutive year, the Parent Company prepared the Sustainability Reporl, a document on corporate social
responsibility.

The Report represents the Parent Company's commitment to the pursuit of social and environmental objectives and 1o the
management stralegies and policies and control methods that the company has implemented and intends to implement on an ongoing
basis.

The application areas on which the Parent Company is constantly focused and operational are:

*  Environment - risks related to climate change, CO2 emissions and pollution;

*  Social policies - protection of human rights and labour standards:

© ¢ Governance policies = remuneration policies for managers and compliance with ethics.

Research and development activities

It is & constant practice and a well-established company policy 1o daily engage in research and development activities aimed at
improving the business phases. Research costs are charged while development costs are capitalised within the limits of the
recoverable amount.

In 2020, the Parent Company obtained concession decree no. ROD0352 of 12/03/2020 with obligation deed signed on 05.02.2021
for the Project ARSO 100682 titled “Awtonomous robotics for the extended ship - ARES™ for a total of EUR 4,761,046 and EUR
2,329,375 as company taking part in the project as a contribution to expenses, applied on the PON “Research and Innovation™ Funds
2014-2020 and FSC pursuant to and for the purposes of art. 13 of the Notice.

For those activities in 2022 it is due a contribution to expenses for EUR 176,743.71 and tax credit for Research and Development
for EUR 45,157.47 as per art. 3 of (It.) Decree Law of 23 December 2013, no. 143 converted, with amendments into (T1.) Law of 21
February 2014, no. 9 and the related Ministerial Decree of 27 May 2015, as amended by Law 160/2019 (Budget Law 2020), the
Mise Transition 4.0 DM of 26 May 2020 and subsequently by art. | para. 1064 of (It.) Law 178/2020 (Budget Law 2021). For
companies operating in the south of Italy, ({It) Decree-Law of 19/05/2020 no. 3, confirmed by the Finance Act 2021 (It Law
17872020}, art.1, paragraph 185 provided for an inerease in the Research and Development Tax Credit. The Budget Law 2022 (It
Law no. 234/2021) in ant. | para. 45 extended and re-established the credit.

In 2021, for the Sustainable growth fund - Application sector “Smart Factory™ Project proposal no. 1874, known as “NSS2023-
Mext Smart System in the marine filed” presented by the company Next Geosolutions Europe SpA., pursuant 1 (It} Ministerial
Decree of 2 August 2019 and of the subsequent (It.) Management Decree of 2 October 2019, the Parent Company received the
preliminary report of the Ministry and obtained a contribution 1o expenses of EUR 2,000,354.01 and a subsidised loan of EUR
1,286,278.85.
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For those activities in 2022 jt obtained a contribution to expenses for EUR 447,272.20 and tax credit for Research and Development
for EUR 96,407.62 as per art. 3 of (It.) Decree-Law No. 145 of 23 December 2013 converted, with amendments, into (It.) Law of
21 February 2014 no. 9 and the related Ministerial Decree of 27 May 20135, as amended by (It.) Law 160:2019 (Budget Law 20200,
the MISE Transition 4.0 DM of 26 May 2020 and subsequently by art. 1 para. 1064 of (It.) Law 1782020 (Budget Law 2021). For
companies operating in the south of [aly, {(IL) Decree-Law of 19%/05/2020 no. 34, confirmed by the Finance Act 2021 (It Law
178/2020), Art. 1, paragraph 185 provided for an increase in the Research and Development Tax Credit. Ar. | para. 45 ol the Budget
Law 2022 (It Law no. 234/2021) extended and rescheduled the credit

The related contributions and credits calculated in accordance with the criterion of cumulation pursuant to art. | paragraph 203 of
(It.) Law 160/2019, as amended by (IL) Law 1782020 are a total of EUR 765,581.00, reported under “Tax Credits” in Balance
Sheet Assets and “Other revenuve and proceeds”™ in the Income Statement, in compliance with the accounting principle O1C 24 and
(It.) Law no. 232 of 11 December 2016.

Omn 221 2/2022, the Parent Company submitted the request, received with registration number 22122238211041225- 000001, for
the tax credit for investments in the south of aly in the amount of EUR 276,772, related to investments in equipment of EUR
1,107,089.00.

The related credit calculated pursuant o (I Law 208/2015 amounts to a total of EUR 276,772, reported under “Tax Credits”™ in
Balance Sheet Assets and “Other revenue and proceeds™ in the Income Statement, in compliance with the accounting principle OIC
24 and (1) Law no. 232 of 11 December 2016,

In 2022, the Parent Company took advaniage of the 4.0 credit for the purchase of assets functional to the technological and digital
transformation of companies in accordance with the “Industry 4.0” model annexed to (It.) Law of 11 December 2016, no, 232 as
amended as per affidavits issued by the Appointed Surveyor. The related credit caloulated in accordance with the law amounts to
EUR 332.562.52 for an investment of EUR 831.406.30, reported under “Tax Credits” in Balance Sheet Assets and “Other revenue
and proceeds” in the Income Statement, in compliance with the accounting principle OIC 24 and (It) Law no. 232 of 11 December
2016.

Relations with subsidiaries, related companies, parent companies and undertakings controlled by the
parent companies

Please note that relations have been entered into with the companies referred to in point 2 third paragraph of Ar. 2428 of the (It}
Civil Code. Transactions between the Group, the parent company and undertakings subject to the control of the parent company are
sel out below.

Transactions between the Group, the parent company and companies subject o the control of the parent company are set out below:

Marnavi Spa - G8E,081 526,000 3887 541 2.138.070 8,363,045 -

Mevalcantien Sri - . - - - 5430 5

Masrnani Shepping s : . 3 : R

Management india Pvi Lid

Mexi Gapsolutions Lid = 1,065 4EE - = = i -

Total - 2,041,557 528,000 3,897,543 2,138,010 6,368,638
Treasury shares

The table below summarises the situation regarding the Parent Company”s treasury shares with reference to 31 December 2022, The
purchase of treasury shares entailed, pursuant to art. 2357-1er of the {IL) Civil Code, the entry of & “Negalive reserve for treasury
shares in portfolio™ in the liabilities of the balance sheet.

Hurnber Haminal Value % Cest

Ending balance & at 311272022 100,000 1.00 20% 738,000

On 22 Novemnber 2022, with deed volume no. 42,392, file no. 25,920, notary Giancarlo Laccarino, Next Geosolutions Europe SpA
completed the purchase of 100,000 treasury shares with a nominal value of EUR 100,000 {(EUR 1.00 for each share).
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Shares of the parent company

It is certified that the Group does not own any shares of the parent company.

A v i i tements

The Group did not make use of the option 1o approve the financial statements within the longer period of 180 days afier the end of
the financial vear.

Significant events that occurred after the end of the vear

There were no significant macroeconomic events after the end of the financial vear, apart from the continuation of the Russia-
LUkraine conflict, which currently offers no significant signs of resolution in the short term and thus prolongs the uncertain
geopolitical - and thus economic - balance of power at global level.

At Group level, it is worth mentioning the arrival of the first fruits of the commereial action with regard to the prestigious French-
Norwegian customer Nexans, with the acguisition of the contract for marine surveys 1o support the construetion of the HVDC
electrical interconnection between France and the Republic of Ireland known as the Celtic Interconnector.,

Business outlook

Pursuant to and for the purposes of point 6) of the third paragraph of art. 2428 of the (1) Civil Code, we would like to point oul,
first of all, the acquisition of prestigious multi=million dollar orders in the North Sea, which will be developed over a period of
several years and which will therefore see Next Geosolutions Europe Group strongly committed to these projects still in 2023 and
2024, These are important, multi-stage and multi-disciplinary projects foreseeing the use of numerous naval vessels both nearshore
and offshore, and onshore activities.

In addition, a number of orders acquired and started earlier continue, such as the marine survevs to support the design and
construction of the Tvirhenian Link East submarine electrodes for Prysmian in the Mediterranean ares.

With regard 10 sales prospects point of view, the Sales Department continves incessantly 10 acquire new Customers and 1o keep
those acquired loyal. and expeets o acquire at least another 34 muliimillion orders in 2023, mainly in the Mediterrancan and in
Morth Europe.

Use of important financial instruments to valuate the assets/liabilities and financial situation and the
economic result for the vear

The Group's objectives and policies in terms of financial risk management, including the hedging policy for each main category of
envisaged transactions, are illustrated in detail in the paragraph “Main risks and uncertainties to which the Group is exposed™. The
Group did not issue any financial instruments during the financial vear 2022, did not have and does not have any transactions for
derivative financial instruments,

Secondary offices

In eompliance with the provisions of art. 2428 of the (IL} Civil Code, please note that the Parent Company Next Geosolutions
Europe SpA has a branch office used as a logistics depot at Via D. De Roberio, 44 - 80143 MNaples and a branch office a1 Via
Medina, 13 - 80133 Naples used as an office.

Maples, 28 April 2023 : Giorgio Filippf
{signature] Chairman of the
i Ginseppe Majfia

[signature]

Managing Director

Gigvanni Ranferi

[signature] Managing Director
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General information on the undertaking

Company data

Company Name:

Registered office:

Share Capital:

Fully paid-up share capital:
Chamber of Commerce, Industry, Small Business and Agriculture (CCIAA) code:
VAT number:

Tax code:

E.AL registration number:
Legal Form:

Main business sector (ATECO):
Company in liquidation:

Company with a Sole Shareholder:
Company subject to management and coordination by others:

Name of the company or body that exercises management and
coordination activities:
Member of a group:

Name of the parent company:

Country of the parent company:

Cooperative registration number:
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Financial Statements as at 31/12/2022

Consolidated Balance Sheet

Assets

B) Fixed assets

| - Intangible fixed assets

1) start-up and expansion costs 469

2) development costs 234.891

3) industrial patent rights and rights to use intellectual property

4) concessions, licences, trademarks and similar rights 45.058
1.708.394

5) Goodwill

XBRL Balance Sheet
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Financial Statements as at 31/12/2022

6) fixed assets under construction and advances

165.000

7) other

296,735

Total intangible fixed assets

2.449.547

It - Tangible fixed assets

1} land and buildings

2.117.762

2) plants and machinery

4,955

3} industrial and commercial equipment

3.123,179

4) other assets

12.548.479

5) fixed assets under construction and advances

5.588.457

Total tangible fixed assets

23.392.832

Ili - Financial fixed assets

1) equity investments in

d) undertakings controlled by parent companies

2.118

d-bis) other undertakings

22.740

Total equity investments

24,858

o 2) receivables

d-bis) from others

217.316

due within one year

due beyond one year

217.316

Total receivables

217.316

Total financial fixed assets

242,174

Total fixed assets (B)

26,084,553

C) Current assets

| - Inventories

1) raw, ancillary materials and consumables

1.418.828

3) contract work in progress

58.973.516

Total inventories

60.352.343

Tangible fixed assets held for sale

Il - Receivables

1) from customers

18.875.734

due within one year

18,875.734

4) from parent companies

986.091

due within one year

986.091

5) from undertakings controlled by the parent companies

1.055.466

XBRL Balance Sheet
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1.056.466

due beyond one year
5-bis) tax receivables 3.477.297
due within one year 3.477.297
5-ter) prepaid taxes 490.768
5-quater) from others 393.475
due within one year 393.475
Total receivables 25.278.831
IV - Cash and cash equivalents -
1) bank and postal deposits 10.241.743
3) cash on hand and liquid assets 6.865
Total cash and cash equivalents 10.248.608
Tgtaqcurrent assets (C) 96.919.782
Ij)#;écruals and deferrals 24 24930
Total assets 124.129.265
Liabilities | R
A) Grbup shaféholderé’ équit.).(‘ '
| - Capital 500.000
IV - Legal reserve 163.055
VI - Other reserves, separately indicated
Extraordinary reserve 5.990
Reserve from differences in conversion 17.180
Euro rounding reserve 2
Total other reserves 23.142
VIII - Profits (losses) brought forward 12.664.733
IX - Profit (loss) for the year 7.357.462
X - Negative reserve for treasury shares in portfolio (738.000)
Total group shareholders’ equity 19.970.392
Minority shareholders’ equity
Capital and minority interest 30.851
Minority profit (loss) 29.920
Total minority interest in shareholders’ equity 60.571

Total consolidated shareholders’ equity

20.030.963

B) .Provisions for riéks and charges

2) for taxes, even deferred

811,541

XBRL Balance Sheet
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Total provisions for risks and charges

811.541

C) Employee Severance Indemnities

D) Payables

3) payables to shareholders for loans

§29.000

due beyond one year

529.000

4) payables to banks

28.099.119

due within one year

12.446.606

due beyond one year

15.652.513

5) payables to other lenders

1.006.171

due within one year

329.521

due beyond one year

676.650

~.. 6)advances

51.413.963

due within one year

51.413.963

17) payables to suppliers

13.768.890

due within one year

13.768.890

' 11) payables to parent companies

3.897.541

due within one year

3.897.541

11 -bis) payables to undertakings controlled by the parent companies

2

due within one year

2

12) tax payables

§29.162

due within one year

829.162

13) payables to pension funds and social security institutions

172.414

due within one year

172.414

14) other payables

599.556

due within one year

599.556

Total payables

100.315.818

E) Accruals ahd deferrals

7 1.663.269

Total liabilities

124.129.265

Consolidated Profit and Loss Account

A) Value of production

XBRL Balance Sheet
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1) revenues from sales and services

52.616.554

3) changes in contract work in progress

12.739.901

5) other revenues and income

operating grants

1.086.489

other

781.754

Total other revenues and income

1.868.243

Total value of production

B):Production costs

67.224.698

i 6) for raw, ancillary materials and consumables

6.817.229

7) for services

29.963.261

8) for leased assets

11.844.777

9) for personnel

a) wages and salaries

7.266.491

b) social security charges

988.011

¢) severance indemnity

366.069

Total personnel costs

8.620.561

10) amortisation, depreciation and write-downs

a) amortisation of intangible fixed assets

745.043

b) depreciation of tangible fixed assets

1.516.217

Total amortisation, depreciation and write-downs

2.261.260

11) changes in raw, ancillary materials, consumables and goods

(922.197)

14) various operating charges

262,764

Total production costs

£8.847.655

leference between value of productlon and productlon costs (A B)

*'8.377.043

C) Flnanmal income and charges

16) other financial income

d) income other than above

other

1.570

Total income other than above

1.570

Total other financial income

1.570

17) interest and other financial charges

other

643.058

Total interest and other financial charges

643,058

17-bis) exchange gains and losses

(298.717)

XBRL Balance Sheet
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Total financial income and charges (15+16-17+-17-bis)

Result before taxes‘ (A-B + -C + -D)

20) Current, .deferred and prepéid income taxes

current taxes 122.327
taxes for the previous years 636
deferred and prepaid taxes (73.507)

Total current, deferred and prepaid income taxes

21) Profit (loss) for the year

Group result

Result attributable to minority interests

IXBRL Balance Sheet 6
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F

-g;ﬁhsolidated cash flow statement, indirect method

A) Financial flows arising from operating activities (indirect method)

Profit (loss) for the year 7.387.382
Income taxes 49.456
interest payable/(receivable) 653.633
1) Profit (loss) for the year before income taxes, interests, dividends and capital gains/losses deriving from

disposals 8.090.471

Adjustments to non-monetary items that were not offset by the net working capital

Allocations to provisions 366.059
Amortisation/depreciation of fixed assets 2.261.260
Other adjustments up/(down) for non-monetary items 888
Total adjustments to non-monetary items that were not offset by the net working capital 2.628.207
2) Financial flow before changes in net working capital 10.718.678

Changes in net working capital

Decrease/(Increase) in inventories (13.618.471)
Decrease/(Increase) in receivables from customers (2.604.489)
Increase/(Decrease) in payables to suppliers (912.509)
Decrease/(Increase) in accrued income and prepaid expenses (1.413.726)
Increase/(Decrease) in accrued expenses and deferred income 225.000
Other decreases/(Other increases) in net working capital 21.759.964
Total changes in net working capital 3.435.773
3) Financial flow after changes in net working capital 14.154.451

Other adjustments

Interest collected/(paid) (643.430)
(Paid income taxes) (288.923)
(Use of provisions) (58.189)
Total other adjustments (990.542)

Financial flow arising from operating activity (A) 13.163.909

B) Financial flows arising from investing activities

tangible fixed assets

(Investments) (13.462.699)

Intangible fixed assets

(Investments) (396.853)

XBRL Balance Sheet 7
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Financial Statements as at 31/12/2022'

31122022

Financial fixed assets

(Investments) (25.198)

Divestitures 2.288

Financial flow arising from investing activity (B) (13.882,462)

C) Financial flows arising from financing activities

Loan capital

Increase/(Decrease) in short-term payables to banks (4.940.518)

Loans taken out 10.600.000

(Repayment of loans) (1.977.274)

Financial flow arising from financing activity (C) 3.682.208
" Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A% B  C) 2,963.655

Exchange rate effect on cash and cash equivalents (20.519)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Bank and postal deposits 7.300.134

Cash on hand and liquid assets 5.338

Total cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 7.305.472

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Bank and postal deposits 10.241.743

Cash on hand and liquid assets 6.865

Total cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 10.248.608

Information at the foot of the cash flow statement

The cash flow statement, prepared in accordance with the provisions of Article 2425-ter of the (It.) Civil Code, has been
prepared with the indirect method, using the format provided by the accounting standard OIC 17 for the consolidated
cash flow statement and following the instructions of accounting standard OIC 10. It shows the changes in cash and
cash equivalents during the year, highlighting the cash flows generated by operating, investment and financing activities,

an [signature]

[signature]

XBRL Balance Sheet

[signature]
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flﬁiroduction to the Notes to the Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements present the assets/liabilities, financial position, financial performance and cash flows
of Next Geosolutions Europe Group (hereinafter referred to as the “Group”). The consolidated financial statements consist
of the balance sheet, the income statement, the cash flow statement and the notes to the financial statements, which have
been prepared in accordance with current legislation and in conformity with national accounting standards. This document
reflects the results of the accounting records regularly kept by the parent company and its subsidiaries, adjusted by the elim-
inations inherent in the consolidation process, as well as the entries outlined later in these notes. The financial statements of
foreign subsidiaries have been appropriately reclassified and adjusted in order to make them consistent with the principles
of Next Geosolutions Europe group (hereinafter referred to as the “Group™).

The assets/liabilities, financial position and financial performance of the Group are presented in a clear, true and fair man-
ner in accordance with the provisions of (It.) Legislative Decree 127/91 and, where necessary, the additional information
required by para. 3 of Art. 29 of the aforementioned decree is also provided.

In particular, the cash flow statement, drawn up in accordance with Article 2425-ter of the (It.) Civil Code using the format
provided by accounting standard OIC 17 for the consolidated cash flow statement and prepared in accordance with the rules of
accounting standard OIC 10, shows the Group’s cash flows appropriately stripped of those to be referred to intragroup positions.
In addition to the consolidation criteria, the notes also illustrate the valuation principles followed for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements, in compliance with the relevant civil law regulations. The notes also include: the lists of
undertakings included and excluded from the consolidation, the reconciliation statement between the shareholders’ equity
and the result of Next Geosolutions Europe SpA (hereinafter also referred to as “Next Geosolutions Europe” or the “Parent
Company” or the “Company”) as resulting from the financial statements and the shareholders’ equity and result as resulting
from the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are also accompanied by a report by the Parent Company’s Board of Directors on the
Group’s situation and performance.

As permitted by the rules governing the preparation of consolidated financial statements (referred to in accounting standard
OIC 17), the presentation of comparative data from the previous year is not required when preparing consolidated financial
statements for the first time. Therefore, these consolidated financial statements do not show the comparative figures for the
previous year and the changes in the balances of the items during the year.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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Structure of the consolidated Balance Sheet, Income Statement and Cash Flow Statement

The structure and content of the consolidated balance sheet, income statement and cash flow statement are as prescribed by
the (It.) Civil Code. Specifically:

- individual items in the balance sheet and income statement have not been further subdivided;

- items whose amount for the current year is zero have not been reported;

- there are no assets and liabilities falling under more than one headings in the balance sheet. Provisions for asset adjust-
ments are not explicitly shown in the balance sheet, but in the notes to the financial statements, where the gross values,
value adjustments and net values are shown in detail for the individual items.

The amount of capital and reserves of subsidiary companies corresponding to minority equity investments is entered under

an item entitled “Capital and minority interest reserves”. The portion of the consolidated economic result corresponding to

minority equity investments is recorded in an item called “Minority profit (loss)”.

Information on the composition of the group of companies

The Group operates in the field of international marine geoscience and offshore construction support services, also through its
subsidiaries Next Geosolutions UKCS Ltd, Next Geosolutions BV, Seashiptanker Srl, Phoenix Offshore Srl and NextPoli Sri.

The structure of Next Geosolutions Europe group is shown below in graphic form:

s

Next Geosolutions
Europe SpA

100% 100% 100% 80% 50%
b { h
Next Geosolutions | Phoenlx Offshore | | Next Geosolutions | i !
! UKES Ltd j { phe } E BY j % Seashiptanker Srl | NextPoli 1l

The following table summarises information as at 31 December 2022 on the name, registered office, share capital and share-
holding in the share capital held by Next Geosolutions Europe SpA Group:

Capital Shareholding
{local currency units) percentage

Consolidation

method Currency

Company Registered office

Next Geosolutions Europe SpA Naples - [taly Line-by-line Euro 500,000 Parent company

Phoenix Offshore Srl Naples - ltaly Line-by-line Euro 10,329 100%
Seashiptanker Sri Naples - italy Line-by-line Euro 10,000 80%
Next Geosolutions UKCS Ltd London - England Line-by-line Pound steriing 1,000 100%
Next Geosalutions BV ljmuiden - The Line-by-line Euro 20,000 100%

Netherlands

NextPoli Srt Naples - Italy Proportional Euro 10,000 50%

The Group also holds minority equity investments in the companies controlled by the parent company Finimm Srl and Mar-
navi Shipping Management India Pvt Ltd and in the consortia Area Tech, Cluster Blue Italian Growth and Mar.Te. Scavi.

Notes to the Financial Statements 2
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Significant events during the year ended 31 December 2022

For a description of the significant events that occurred during the year ended 31 December 2022, please refer to the Report on
Operations.

General criteria for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements

There were no exceptional cases that made it necessary to resort to derogations under Articles 29 and 34 of (It.) Legislative Decree
no. 127/91.
For the preparation of the consolidated financial statements, the financial statements as at 31 December 2022 of the companies
belonging to the Group as formulated by their respective governing bodies and approved by their respective shareholders’ meetings
were used.
The financial statements used to prepare the consolidated financial statements were all prepared by applying uniform valuation
criteria to those used by the Parent Companies in their own financial statements.
The structure and content of the balance sheet, income statement and cash flow statement are those laid down for the annual
financial statements of consolidated companies, since the conditions set forth in the second sentence of para. I of Art. 32 of (It.)
Legislative Decree no. 127/91 are not met.
As mentioned above, since this is the first time the consolidated financial statements have been prepared, comparative financial
statements for the previous year have not been presented. Therefore, these consolidated financial statements do not show the
comparative figures for the previous year and the changes in the balances of the items during the year.
The consolidated financial statements are drawn up in Euro units.
The balance sheet items were valued in accordance with the prineiple of prudence and on a going concern basis. Pursuant to art.
2423-bis ¢.l point 1-bis of the (It.) Civil Code, the recognition and presentation of items is made taking into account the substance
of the transaction or contract. The application of the principle of prudence entailed the individual valuation of the components of
individual items of assets or liabilities, in order to avoid offsets between losses that had to be recognised and profits that were not
to be recognised because they were unrealised.
In the preparation of the consolidated financial statements, income and expenses have been recognised on an accrual basis regardless
of when they occur. In addition, risks and losses pertaining to the year were taken into consideration even if they became known
after the end of the year.

~Receivables and payables are presented in the balance sheet items in consideration of their collectability (within/beyond the next
financial year).
’Wi‘t regard to the business outlook, please refer to the report on operations.

In hght of the results achieved, the Group considers it appropriate to use the going concern assumption for the preparation of the
fingngial statements as at 31 December 2022.
Lo

L

~Conversion of financial statements expressed in currencies other than the Euro

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Euro. In order to include companies that prepare their financial statements
in currencies other than the Euro in the scope of consolidation using the full or proportional method, they are first converted into
Euros. A similar conversion is made in relation to equity investments valuated using the equity method whose financial statements
are drawn up in currencies other than the Euro.

Any adjustments necessary to adapt the financial statements of the above-mentioned companies to the group’s uniform accounting
principles are made before they are converted into Euros.

The conversion of financial statements expressed in a foreign currency, for the purposes of preparing consolidated financial
statements, is done using:

a) the spot exchange rate at the date of the financial statements for the conversion of assets and liabilities;

b) the exchange rate prevailing at the date of each transaction for income statement items and for cash flows in the cash flow
statement; alternatively, the use of the average exchange rate for the year or sub-periods of the year applied to transactions and
cash flows occurring in those sub-periods is permissible for practical reasons;

Notes to the Financial Statements 3
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¢) the historical exchange rate at the time of their formation for equity reserves (other than the reserve for differences in
conversion).

The net effect of converting the financial statements of the investee company into the reporting currency is recognised in a special

“Reserve from differences in conversion” within the consolidated shareholders’ equity.

The inclusion of the financial statements of a foreign investee company in the scope of consolidation results in the elimination of
intragroup balances. To this end, they are converted, prior to their elimination, using the exchange rates at the end of the financial
year in order to align the reciprocal balances between consolidated companies and recording the difference in accordance with
group accounting principles.

Principles of consolidation

The following companies are consolidated on a line-by-line basis as subsidiaries:

- Next Geosolutions UKCS Ltd;

- Next Geosolutions BV;

- Seashiptanker Srl;

- Phoenix Offshore Sri.

With this method, accounting entries are consolidated line by line and the following are eliminated:

a) equity investments in companies included in the consolidation and the corresponding fractions of shareholders’ equity. The
climination of the value of equity investments against the corresponding net asset value was based on the book values at
the date of acquisition or incorporation of the shareholding. Any surpluses, which cannot be attributed to specific entries of
the financial statements, are allocated, if positive, to the item “Goodwill” included under intangible fixed assets and subject
to amortisation over the five-year period provided for in subsection no. 6 of Article 2626 of the (It.) Civil Code. When
surpluses are negative, they are recorded in a shareholders’ equity item called “consolidation reserve”, or, when they are due
to forecasts of unfavourable economic results, in an item called “consolidation reserve for future risks and charges”. Portions
of shareholders’ equity attributable to minority sharcholders are recorded in the appropriate item of the balance sheet. In the
income statement, the share of the result attributable to minority interests is shown separately.

b) receivables and payables between the companies included in the consolidation.

¢) revenues and costs, income and expenses relating to transactions between the companies themselves.

d) profits and losses from intra-group transactions included in the assets and liabilities of the consolidated companies.
e) dividends received from consolidated companies.

The financial statements of the subsidiary Next Geosolutions BV, based in The Netherlands, are expressed in Euros, therefore it
was 1ot necessary to convert the balances in foreign currency; the financial statements of Next Geosolutions UKCS Ltd, based in
England, are expressed in Pounds Sterling; therefore, it was necessary to convert the balances in the presentation currency of the
consolidated financial statements (Euro).

NextPoli Stl is consolidated using the proportional method, as it is a jointly controlled company.

With this method, accounting entries are consolidated line by line in proportion to the shareholding. Only the portion of shareholders’
equity attributable to the group is eliminated from the value of the equity investments, so that the consolidated financial statements
do not show the value of the equity and earnings corresponding to minority interests. Intra-group profits and losses are eliminated
proportionally; all other consolidation adjustments are made on a proportional basis. The receivables and payables, income and
expenses of the jointly controlled company are eliminated in proportion to the shareholding. Any differences resulting from the
consolidation are treated as in the case of line-by-line consolidation.

On the other hand, investments in the following companies are valued at cost, adjusted for impairment losses, as they are equity
investments in companies controlled by the parent company and in other companies not subject to control, joint control or significant
influence:

Notes to the Financial Statements 4
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- Marnavi Shipping Management India Pvt Ltd;
- Consortium Area Tech;

- Consortium Cluster Blue Italian Growth;

- Consortium Mar. Te, Scavi.

Valuation criteria applied

For topics not specifically covered by the (It.) Civil Code, we have referred to the accounting standards, applicable to a going
concern, suggested by the Italian Accounting Body (Organismo Italiano di Contabilita - OIC), in force as at 31 December 2022.

The criteria applied in the valuation of balance sheet items and value adjustments comply with the provisions of the (It.) Civil Code
and are set out below.

FIXED ASSETS

The Group verifies at cach financial statements date whether there is an indicator, based on internal and/or external information
Sources, that individual fixed assets may be impaired. Should this indicator exist, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
fixed asset and makes a write-down only if the latter is lower than the corresponding, net book value. In the absence of indicators
Jiof; étentlal impairment, the recoverable amount is not determined.

INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

‘ They are entered at purchase or production cost, inclusive of accessory charges and of directly attributable costs and systematically
amortised each year on a straight-line basis. Intangible fixed assets are entered with the consent of the Board of Statutory Auditors
in the cases envisaged by law.

Multi-year costs were capitalised only on condition that they could be “recovered” thanks to and within the limits of the future
profitability of the company. Should this condition fail to be applied in the years following the year of capitalisation, the fixed asset
will be written down.

The amortisation of intangible fixed assets starts from the moment the fixed asset is available and ready for use and has been
performed systematically and in each financial year, in relation to the residual possibility of future economic use of each individual
fixed asset. In fact, the cost of the fixed assets in question was amortised on the basis of a “plan” that is deemed to ensure a correct
distribution of the such cost over the period of useful economic life of the asset to which it refers, which does not exceed five years
in any case. The amortisation plan can be readjusted only if the ascertained remaining useful economic life is different from the one
originally estimated. The amortisation plan applied, “on a straight-line basis”, does not differ from the one used for previous years.

In accordance with OIC 9, in the presence of specific potential impairment indicators, the Group determines the recoverable
amount of the fixed asset, which is the higher of value in use and fair value less costs to sell. Value in Use is the discounted value
of the expected cash flows from an asset or cash-generating unit. Whereas fair value means the amount obtainable from the sale of
an asset in an ordinary transaction between market participants at the valuation date.

If, irrespective of amortisation already accounted for, the fixed asset has a value that is permanently lower than the corresponding
net book value, it is recorded at this lower value. The difference is charged to the income statement as an impairment loss. If, in
subsequent years, the reasons for the write-down no longer apply, the original value, adjusted only for amortisation, is reinstated.
In the absence of potential impairment indicators, it is not necessary to determine the recoverable amount.

In accordance with OIC 9, as no potential impairment indicators were recognised in the financial statements as at 31 December
2022, it was not necessary to determine the recoverable amount and no impairment loss was recognised.
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TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

They are recorded at the purchase or production cost, net of depreciation effected during the year and in previous years. The
cost includes accessory charges and direct and indirect costs, for the portion reasonably attributable to the asset, relating to the
manufacturing period and up to the moment from which the asset can be used. Tangible fixed assets can be revalued only if required
or allowed by special laws. Fixed assets recognised at cost in foreign currency are recorded at the exchange rate at the time of their
acquisition (historical exchange rate). Fixed assets are systematically depreciated, each year and on a straight-line basis, according
to the rates envisaged by tax regulations that are deemed to represent the residual possibility of use of the assets. The depreciation
of tangible fixed assets begins from the moment the fixed asset is available and ready for use. For fixed assets that were available
and ready for use during the financial year, the depreciation rates are considered to be 100%.

The depreciation criterion applied for the year ended 31 December 2022 does not differ from the one used for depreciation of the
previous years. The depreciation plan will be readjusted only if the ascertained remaining useful economic life is different from the
one originally estimated. In particular, in addition to considerations of the physical life of the assets, all other factors affecting the
economic life of the assets, such as technical obsolescence, intensity of use, maintenance policy, etc., have been and will be taken
info account. Maintenance and repair costs of an ordinary nature are charged in full to the income statement. Maintenance costs
of an incremental nature are allocated to the assets to which they relate and depreciated over their residual useful life. The costs
incurred with the aim of expanding, modernising or improving the structural elements of a tangible fixed asset can be capitalised
if they produce a significant and measurable increase in the production capacity, safety or useful life. Should these costs fail to
produce such effects, they are treated as ordinary maintenance costs and charged to the income statement,

Tangible fixed assets held for sale are reclassified in a specific item under current assets and, therefore, are valued at the lower of
the net book value and the realisable value calculated on the basis of market trends. Assets held for sale are no longer subject to
depreciation.

Spare parts are distinguished between: parts with low unit cost. low total value and recurring use, which are recognised as costs at
the time of purchase; spare parts of significant unit cost and non-recurring use, which are recognised among tangible fixed assets
and depreciated over the period that appears to be shorter by comparing the residual useful life of the asset to which they refer and
their useful life calculated on the basis of an estimate of times of use.

In accordance with OIC 9, in the presence of specific potential impairment indicators, the Group determines the recoverable
amount of the fixed asset, which is the higher of value in use and fair value less costs to sell. Value in Use is the discounted value
of the expected cash flows from an asset or cash-generating unit. Whercas fair value means the amount obtainable from the sale of
an asset in an ordinary transaction between market participants at the valuation date.

If, irrespective of amortisation already accounted for, the fixed asset has a value that is permanently lower than the corresponding
net book value, it is recorded at this lower value. The difference is charged to the income statement as an impairment loss. If, in
subsequent years, the reasons for the write-down no longer apply, the original value, adjusted only for amortisation, is reinstated.
In the absence of potential impairment indicators, it is not necessary to determine the recoverable amount.

In accordance with the provisions of OIC 9, as no indicators of potential impairment were recognised in the financial statements as
at 31 December 2022, it was not necessary to determine the recoverable amount and no impairment loss was recognised.

FINANCIAL FIXED ASSETS

"Equity investments

Notes to the Financial Statements 6
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Equity investments were valued at purchase or incorporation cost, including ancillary costs, adjusted for impairment losses, Equity
investments intended to be held on a long-term basis are classified as “Financial Fixed Assets”.

In the presence of impairment indicators, the Group compares the carrying value of the equity investment with its recoverable
value, determined on the basis of the future benefits that are expected to flow to the treasury of the investor. Having ascertained
the impairment of the equity investment at the time the financial statements were drawn up and determined its recoverable value,
the carrying value is reduced to this lower value. In the event that the reasons that had induced the administrative body to abandon
the cost criterion in order to assume a lower value in the valuation of fixed assets are no longer valid, the value of the security is
increased up to a maximum of the original cost.

As there were no potential impairment indicators in the financial statements as at 31 December 2022, it was not necessary to
determine the recoverable amount and no impairment loss was recognised.

Receivables

Receivables of financial origin are classified as financial fixed assets. Such receivables are recognised in the financial statements
according to their presumed realisable value. For this purpose and where necessary, the nominal value of receivables is adjusted by
means of a specific provision for doubtful receivables, exposed to direct reduction of the nominal value of receivables and aimed
at adjusting them to their presumed realisable value.

As allowed by paragraph 33 of the accounting standard OIC 15, the amortised cost criterion has not been applied if the effects of
applying this criterion are insignificant compared to the value determined according to the criterion of estimated realisable value.
Effects can be assumed not to be significant if;

- receivables are short-term (that is to say with a maturity of less than 12 months);

. ftransaction costs, commission and any other differences between initial value and value at maturity are of little significance.

INVENTORIES

Raw, ancillary materials, and consumables

Inventories of goods were recorded at the lower of purchase and/or production cost and realisable value based on market trends.
The purchase cost includes any directly attributable ancillary charges.

The production cost includes direct costs and indirect costs incurred in the course of production and necessary to bring inventories
to their present condition and location, for the portion reasonably attributable to the product relative to the period of manufacture
and up to the time from which the asset can be used. In view of the significance of the production period, charges relating to the
financing of manufacturing, whether in-house or outsourced, were added to the production costs; they were in any case capitalised
within the limit of the realisable value of the asset inferable from market trends.

The cost of inventories of raw, ancillary and consumable materials of a fungible nature was calculated using the FIFO method as an
alternative to specific cost, given the technical or administrative impossibility of keeping each physical unit in inventory separate.
This method involves the assumption that the quantities purchased or produced first are the first to be sold or used in production.

The value thus determined was appropriately compared, as explicitly required by Art. 2426 no. 9 of the (It.) Civil Code, with the
realisable value inferable from market trends.

Contract work in progress

Contract work in progress includes interim and medium-/long-term orders and is valued on the basis of the amounts accrued with
reasonable certainty in accordance with the percentage of completion method. The percentage of completion is determined using
the physical measurement method.

1
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Any losses on orders, estimated with reasonable approximation, are fully deducted from the value of the contract work 111 Progress
for the year in which they become known. If this loss is greater than the value of the work in progress, the Group recognises a
specific provision for risks and charges equal to said excess. Additional fees are included in contract revenue only when the client
formally accepted such additional fees within the balance sheet date; otherwise, even in the absence of formal acceptance, it is
highly likely that the request for additional fees is accepted, on the basis of the most recent information and historical experience, at
the balance sheet date. Amounts received from the client by way of advances and payments on account are recognised as liabifities
under the item “D.6 Advances™. while those paid to subcontractors by way of advances and payments on account are recognised as
assets under the item “C.1.5 Advances”.

RECEIVABLES

Receivables are recognised according to their presumed realisable value. For this purpose, the nominal value of receivables is
adjusted, where necessary, by means of a specific provision for doubtful receivables, exposed to direct reduction of the nominal
value of receivables and aimed at adjusting them to their presumed realisable value.

As allowed by paragraph 33 of the accounting standard OIC 15, the amortised cost criterion has not been applied if the effects of
applying this criterion are insignificant compared to the vajue determined on the basis of the presumed realisable value criterion.
Effects can be assumed not to be significant if:

- the receivables are short-term (that is to say with a maturity of less than 12 months});

- the transaction costs, commission and any other differences between initial value and value at maturity are of little significance.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Bank and postal depesits and cheques (current account, bank drafts and similar) are valued according to the general principle of the
presumed realisable value. This value normally ceingides with the nominal value, while in situations of doubtful collectability the
estimated net realisable value is shown. Cash and tax stamps on hand are valued at nominal value.

Liquid assets denominated in foreign currencies are valued at the spat exchange rate on the financial year closing date.

ACCRUED INCOME AND DEFERRED EXPENSES

Any income pertaining o the year but falling due during subsequent financial years and any costs inourred before the end of the
year bul pertaining to subsequent financial years is entered under the item “accrued income and deferred expenses™.

PROVISIONS FOR RISKS AND CHARGES

Provisions for risks and charges are set aside in order to cover liabilities of a determined natuze, of certain or probable existence,
whose amount or date of occurrence, however, could not be determined at the end of the year. The appropriations reflect the
best possible estimate on the basis of the information available. Risks for which the occurrence of a liability is onfy possible are
disclosed in the note on provisions, without making an appropriation o a provision for risks and charges.

The provisions were established in accordance with the principles of prudence and accrual, observing the requirements of accounting
standard OIC 31. The related provisions are recognised in the income statement for the year in which they are incurred, based on
the criterion of classification by nature of expense.

PAYABLES

Payables are entered at their nominal value, which s deemed to represent their presumed extinction value. As allowed by paragraph 42 of the
accounting standard OIC 19, the amortised cost criterion has not been applied if the effects of applying this criterion are insignificant compared to
the value determined according to the nominal value criterion. Effects can be assumed not to be significant if!

the payabies are short-term (that is to say with a maturity of less than 12 months});

Notes to the Financial Statements 8
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. the transaction costs, commission and any other differences between initial value and value at maturity are of little significance.

EMPLOYEE SEVERANCE INDEMNITIES

The amount that employees would be entitled to receive in the event of termination of the employment relationship, at the balance
sheet date, was entered under the item “employee severance indemnity”. The indemnities composing the item above, that is to
say the portion pertaining to the year and the annual revaluation of the pre-existing fund, are determined in compliance with the
regulations in force, with the employment agreement in force, pursuant to art. 2120 of the (It.) Civil Code.

The amount of the fund as at 31 December 2022 is net of advances paid, portions utilised for terminations of employment during
the year and portions paid to the aforementioned funds.

ACCRUED EXPENSES AND DEFERRED INCOME

Any costs pertaining to the year but falling due during subsequent financial years and any income collected before the end of the
year but pertaining to subsequent financial years is entered under the item “accrued expenses and deferred income”.

INCOME

Revenues for services are recognised on an accrual basis when the service is rendered, i.e. when the service is performed. Revenues
from the sale of goods are recognised on an accrual basis when the substantive and not formal transfer of title has occurred, taking
the transfer of risks and rewards as the benchmark for the substantive transter. They are stated in the balance sheet net of returns,
discounts, rebates and premiums, as well as taxes directly related to the sale of products and the provision of services.

Transactions with related parties were carried out at normal market conditions.
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. ?accrual basis when the service is rendered, i.e. when the presentation is made. The costs for the purchase of assets are recognised

&1 an accrual basis when the substantial and non-formal transfer of title has occurred, taking the transfer of risks and rewards as the
benchmark for the substantial transfer. They are entered in the balance sheet net of returns, discounts, allowances and premiums.

Transactions with related parties were carried out at normal market conditions.

FINANCIAL INCOME AND CHARGES

Financial income and charges are recorded on an accrual basis. Costs relating to the disposal of receivables for any reason (with and
without recourse) and of any nature (commercial, financial, other) are recognised in the year to which they pertain.

TAXES

Current taxes are recorded on the basis of the estimated taxable income in compliance with the regulations in force, taking into
account the tax rates applicable on the date of the financial statements, applicable exemptions and tax credits due. Specifically,
current taxes are determined on the basis of an analytical forecast of the taxable income for the year, taking into consideration the
facilitated regime envisaged by (It.) Law no. 30/1998 and the Tonnage Tax.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are calculated on the temporary differences between the values of assets and liabilities that are
determined according to the statutory criteria and the corresponding values recognised for tax purposes. They are assessed by taking
into account the estimated tax rate that the Group is expected to incur during the year in which these differences will contribute
to the formation of the tax result, by considering the rates in force or already issued at the balance sheet date and are respectively
entered under the “provision for deferred taxes” recognised under liabilities among the provisions for risks and charges and under
the item 4 ter) and under the item “receivables for prepaid taxes™ of the current assets.
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Deferred tax assets are recognised for all the deductible temporary differences, in compliance with the principle of prudence and
only if there is the reasonable certainty that, in the years when those differences will reverse, there is taxable income no lower than
the amount of the differences that are to be written off. On the other hand, deferred taxes are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences.

FINANCE LEASE TRANSACTIONS

Finance leases are accounted for in the consolidated financial statements using the financial method. The Group enters goods
received under finance leases in the fixed assets items of the consolidated balance sheet against the obtaining of a loan from the
leasing company, records depreciation on the assets and interest expense on the loan obtained in the income statement.

CRITERIA FOR CONVERTING FOREIGN CURRENCY ITEMS

Non-monetary assets and liabilities originally expressed in foreign currency are recognised in the balance sheet at the exchange
rate in force at the time of their purchase, that is to say at the initial recognition cost (historical exchange rate). In order to establish
whether this cost (possibly reduced by depreciation and amortisation in case of tangible and intangible fixed assets, respectively)
can be maintained in the financial statements, it must be compared with the recoverable value (for fixed assets) or with the realisable
value calculated on the basis of market trends (for non-monetary items in foreign currency recognised under current assets). Assets
and liabilities of a monetary nature, originally expressed in foreign currency, are converted at the spot exchange rate on the closing
date of the financial year in the financial statements. At the end of the year, foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are
recognised at the spot exchange rates in force at the balance sheet date; the related exchange gains and losses are recognised in the
income statement and any net profit is allocated to a special non-distributable reserve until realisation.

Exemptions under para. IV and V of Art. 2423

No exemptions were made under para. iv and v of Art. 2423.

Off-balance sheet transactions

There were no off-balance sheet transactions as at 31 December 2022,

Below please find a description of the batances in the consolidated balance sheet and income statement.

Balance Sheet Assets

The individual budget items are analysed in detail below, in accordance with the provisions of the applicable legislation.

Fixed assets

RIS NN

A

tangible fixed assets
i e}ta"tfle below provides a breakdown of Intangible Fixed Assets:
{

Concessions,

Start-up Development licences, . fixed assets Other intangible
and costs - trademarks, and Gooduwill under fixed assets Total
expansion costs similar ri’ghts construction
Historical Cost 6,868 775,359 477,320 2,181,488 165,000 752,768 4,358,803

Notes to the Financial Statements 10




MEXT GEQSOLUTIONS EUROFE 5.PA. Consolidated financlal statements as al 311272022

:J’:;‘“““”"“ (Amortisation 8299 540,488 432,262 473,084 ] 457033 1909256
Value at the end of the year 489 234,891 45,058 1,708,394 165,000 295735 2,449,547

The item “Start-up and expansion costs”, amounting to EUR 469, refers to the residual value of the incorporation costs of NextPoli
&rl.

The item “Development costs”, amounting to EUR 234.891, refers to a research project for the “Design and implementation of a
system for measuring the thermal resistivity of marine sediments in situ” and the execution of functional tests of this measurement
system.

The item “Concessions. licences, trademarks. and similar rights” amounting to EUR 45,058 includes charges incurred for the
acquisition of licences for software programs.

The item “Goodwill” amounting to EUR 1.708.394 represents the value of the goodwill allocated to Next Geosolutions UKCS Lud.
The item “Fixed assets under construction and advances” amounting to EUR 165,000 refers to investments in progress for the
development of a patent for measuring the thermal conductivity and temperature of marine sediments.

The item ~Other Intangible Fixed Assets”, amounting to EUR 295,735, refers mainly to costs related to works and improvements on
third-party assets and to the valug of furniture and furnishings.

Please note that no revaluation of assets owned by the Group was carried out in the year under review or in previous years.
In accordance with OIC 9. as no indicators of potential impairment were recognised in the financial statements as at 31 December

2022, it was not necessary to determine the recoverable amount and no impairment loss was recognised.

‘!
-

!?
1
e
Tangible fived assets

#
“* The table below provides a breakdown of Tangible Fixed Assets:

Industrial and Fixed assets un-
Land '"ddh;; Faanan 'n':' ma- o smmercial equi-  Otherassets  der construction Total

nary pmient and advances
Historical cost 2.190,554 189,429 6,173,821 14,243 487 5508457 28,395,548
m“""’ {Cepraciation 72,782 184,474 3,050,442 1,595,008 . 5,002,716
::“;.:: s Sugnoing of 2417762 4,955 3123479 12,548,479 5,598,457 23,392,832

The item “Land and Buildings™, amounting to EUR 2,117,762, refers to the value of buildings owned by the Parent Company in
England.

The item “Plants and Machinery”. amounting to EUR 4,995, refers to the value of plants and machinery used in the conduct of
business.

The item “Industrial and Commercial Equipment”, amounting to EUR 3,123,179, refers mainly to the value of mechanical and
electronic equipment used on board ships to perform geophysical and geotechnical analysis at sea. This item includes EUR
1,257,571 for the net book value of equipment under a finance lease.

The item ~Other assets”, amounting to EUR 12,348,479, mainly refers to the value of the vessel NG Worker inclusive of the
improvements made. the value of the NG Driller and the vessel NG Coastal purchased during the year. inclusive of the costs
incurred for their adaptation.

The item “Fixed assets under construction and advances”, amounting to EUR 5.598.458. refers to investments being completed
for the construction of specialised and innovative equipment that will be used in geophysical and geotechnical analysis activities.

Moles to the Financial Statements 1
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Please note that no revaluation of assets owned by the Group was carried out in the year under review or in previous years.

Consolidated financial statements as al 31/12/2022

In accordance with the provisions of OIC 9, as no indicators of potential impairment were recognised in the financial statements as

at 31 December 2022, it was not necessary to determine the recoverable amount and no impairment loss was recognised.

Financial fixed assets

Financial fixed assets as at 31 December 2022 amount to EUR 242,174,

Description

31 December 2022

Il - Financeal fived assets

1) equity investmeanis in

d) undertakings subject to the control of the parent companies 2118
d-bis) ather undertakings 2,740
Total equity investments 24 858
2) recaivables
d-big) from others 217,316
due within one pear =
dus bayond ang year 217,318
Total receivables 217,318
Total financial ficed assets 242174

5
Et!_l.l-it}' investments

*Thé table below gives details of the equity investments:

-

Equity investments in undertakings subjeci 1o the control of the parent companies

Previows

Value at the end

Company Historical cost revaluations/ M‘iﬂ; of the year

Marmavi Shipping Management India P Lid 18 = 18

Finimm Sl 2,100 - 2,100

Value at the end of the year 2,118 2,118
Equity investments in other undertakings

Previous

Company Historical cost revaluations! (Write- = of yhe vaar

dawns) 2ced

Mar.Te. Scawv 4,000 - 4,000

Cansortium Cluster Blue ltalian Growth 17,240 - 17,240

Consortium Asea Tech Bagnoli 500 - 500

BCC 1,000 - 1,000

Value at the end of the year 22,740 12,740

Motes to the Financial Statements
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MEXT GEQSOLUTIONS EUROPE S.PA. Consolidated financial statements as al 31122022

Receivables
Receivables from others

Receivables from others, amounting to EUR 217.316, refer entirely to receivables from ltalian counterparties.

Breakdown of long-term receivables by residual maturity and geographical area

The following table shows the breakdown by residual maturity and by geographical area of receivables recognised as financial
fixed assets.

Description Italy Abroad

from others 217316 -

Amount due within the next financial year . -

Ampunt due beyand the next financial year within 5 years 217 2186 -

Amount due after 5 years - -

-
™

Current assets
R
L

Inventories

The table below shows the breakdown of inventories as at 31 December 2022,

o

Description 31 December 2022
Raw, ancillary materials, consumables and goods 1,418,828
Contract work in progress 5B 873,515
Total 60,392,343

Raw, ancillary materials, and consumables

Inventories of raw, aneillary and consumable materials amounting to EUR 1,418,828 mainly refer to inventories of fuel and
lubricants on ships.

Contract wark in progress

The ftem “Contract work in progress”, amounting to EUR 58,973,513, refers to orders for geophysical and geotechnical analysis
activities at sea.

With reference to the valorisation of contract work in progress, in the presence of binding contracts with customers and in relation
1o the possibility of estimating the result of the contract with reasonable certainty, the percentage of completion method was used.

The state of progress (or percentage of completion) was determined on the basis of the physical/quantitative identification method
of the works and/or service in progress at the date of the financial statements for the orders completed subsequently.

The use of this method made it possible to allocate the results of orders on an accrual basis.

. T
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NEXT GEOSOLUTIONS EUROPE S.PA.

Receivables

The 1able below shows the breakdown of receivables recognised as current assets as at 31 December 2022,

Description 31 December 2022
From customers 16,875,734
From parent companies 886,081
From undertakings subject to the control of the parent companies 1,055,466
Tax receivables 3 47T 297
Prepaid taxes 450,768
From others 383,475
Total 25,278,831

hmkpun'u of receivables included in current assets by residual maturity and geographical area

i
Py X S i £ & . i .
,i‘hc E‘n!lm-.'ing tahle shows the breakdown by residual maturity and geographical area of receivables recorded in current assets.

P 2o
Description Itaky Abroad
From customers 16,386,665 2,489 069
Amount due within one year 16,386 8656 2 489 089

Amount due beyond ane year within 5 years -

Amaount due after 5 years S

From parent companies 985,081

Arnount due within ong year 888,081

Amount dua bayond the following year within 5 years -

Amount dua afier 5 years =

From undertakings subject to the control of the parent companies - 616,800
Amount due within one year =
Armount due beyond one year within 5 years - 616,500

Amopunt due after § years

Tax receivables 3442897 34,600

Amount dus within one yaar 3,442,697

34, 600

amount dus beyond ane year within 5 years -

Amount due afler 5 years = -
Prepaid taxes 10,455 480,313
From others 330,055 83,420
Amount due within the next financial year 330,085 83420

Motes (o the Financial Statements
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Description ftaly Abroad

Amount due beyond the following year within & years - -

Amount due after 5 years a .

Tatal 21,165,963 3,684,202

Receivables from customers

This item, amounting 1o EUR 18.875.734. refers 1o receivables arising from normal sales transactions with domestic and international
CUSIOMETS,

As at 31 December 2022, the receivables recorded in the financial statements were fully recoy crable and, therefore, no provision for
bad debts was set aside to adjust their nominal value.

Receivables from parent companies
This item, amounting to EUR 986,091, refers to trade receivables from the parent company Marnavi SpA.

“ Receivables from undertakings controlled by the parent companies
“The item. amounting to EUR 616,800, refers 1o trade receivables from the English company Next Geosolutions Lid.

Mg o
R 15
%ﬂ?ﬁx receivables

:,The item, amounting 1o EUR 3,477,297, mainly refers 1o direct taxes of EUR 413,584, Withholding Tax credits of EUR 218.419,
VAT eredits of EUR 228,355 and various tax credits (1L Law 208/2015, rescarch and development credits and Industry 4.0) of EUR
2,630,738,

Prepaid laxes
The itern, amounting to EUR 490,768, refers o EUR 480,313 in past tax losses of Next Geosolutions UKCS Ltd and EUR 10,455
in temporary differences deductible in subseguent years,

Deferred 1ax assets have been recognised in the cansolidated financial statements because there is a reasonable certainty that there
will be taxable income in the years in which they will reverse.

Receivables from others
Receivables of a different nature from those shown above are classified under this heading.
The iten. amounting to EUR 393,475, mainly includes an insurance reimbursement for damage to equipment on board a ship.

Cash and cash equivalents
The table below provides a breakdown of cash and cash equivalents.

Description 31 December 2022

Bank and postal deposis 10,241,743

Motes 1o the Financial Statements 15




NEXT GEOSOLUTIONS EUROPE S P.A Consolidated financial statements as at 311272022
Description 31 December 2022

Cash on hand and liquid assetls 6,865

Total 10,248 608

Bank and posial deposits

The item “Bank and postal deposits”. amounting to EUR 10,241,743, includes the positive balances of current accounts opened in
Euro and in foreign currency with banking institutions.

Caxh on hand and liquid assets

The balance of the item “Cash on hand and liquid assets”, amounting to EUR 6,863, consists of the cash in the individual cash
+ boxes on the ships.

el |

‘ Accrued income and deferred expenses

_:i':ﬁ_lp table below shows the balance of accrued income and prepaid expenses as at 31 December 2022,
-

- 31 December 2022
Accrued income and deferred expenses 2,124 930
Total acerued income and deferred expenses 2,124,930

Prepaid expenses mainly include costs related to insurance policies covering risks associated with the ships managed by the Group,
costs related to interim orders and the cost related to the ship's time charter.

There are no prepaid expenses with a duration of more than five vears.

Capitalised financial charges

All interest and other financial charges were fully expensed in the vear. For the purposes of art. 38, ¢. 1{g) of (1.} Legislative Decree
no. 127/1991, it is therefore certified that there is no capitalisation of financial expenses.

Balance Sheet Liabilities

The balances of the individual balance sheet items are analysed in detail below, in accordance with the provisions of the applicable
legislation.

Shareholders’ Equity

The table below provides a breakdown of sharcholders’ equity as at 31 December 2022,

Description Year-end balance

Capital 500,000

Motes to the Financal Statements 18




NEXT GEOSOLUTIONS EUROPE S.P.A.

Description Year-end balance
Legal reserve 183,055
Extracrdinary reserve 5,990
Resarve from differences in conversion 17,150
Rounding reserss 2
Other reserves 23,142
Profits (losses) brought farward 12,664,733
Profit (loss) for the year 7,357 452
Hegative reserve for ireasury shares in porifolio (738,000)
Total Group Shareholders' Equity 19,970,392
Capital and minority interest J0B5
Minority profit (loss) 29,920
Total minority interest in Sharehalders’ Equity 60,571
_Tnurihluhaldml'Equitj- 20,030,963

Consolidated financial staterments as at 311272022

:T]'L: {ollowing table provides a reconciliation of the Parent Company s shareholders” equity and result for the year with the equity

A afil result for the year in the consolidated financial statements.

i e g

Shareholders’ equity Result of the current
Pescdption current year financial year
Shareholders’ equity and result for the year as reported in the
Parent Company’s financial statements A0 7.226,668
Eliminaticn of the carrying value of consolidated equily investments:
- dll'!'ar%n-ca betwean book value and equity value of shareholders’ 385,235 134 139
equity
Tatal 385235 134,139
EEmination of the effects of transactions between consolidated
companies:
- intra-group (gains) losses 33624 33624
Total 313624 J3g24
Oiher consolidation adjustments
- Agsaunting for finance leases using the financial method (17,238) (6,048
Total {17.238) {6,048}
Shareholders’ equity and result for the year as reported in the 20,030,983

consolidated Financial Statemeants.

7,387,382 .

Motes to the Financial Statements
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Share Capital

The item reflects the share capital of the Parent Company, During the 2022 financial year. in execution of the resolution of the
Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting of the Parent Company held on 28 December 2021 (volume no. 41,354, file 25.20]. Notarny
Giancarlo laccarino) and afier the 90-day period set forth in Article 2445 of the (It.) Civil Code had elapsed without any creditor
objecting. the Company cancelled the treasury shares in its portfalio for EUR 500,000, with a corresponding reduction in share
capital by the same amount.

Legal reserve
The reserve includes the value of the legal reserve of Next Geosolutions Europe SpA, established pursuant to Article 2430 of the
(1t.) Civil Code.

Orher Reserves
Other reserves, amounting to EUR 23,142, are composed as follows:

Description Amount
Extracrdinary resane 5,890
Reserve from differences in conversion 17,150
Rounding reserve 2
Total 23,142

The other reserves refer to the “Extraordinary reserve” included in the sharcholders’ equity of the Parent Company. the "Reserve
for differences in conversion™ arising from the conversion of the financial statements of consolidated companies expressed in
_eurrencies other than the Euro, and the “Rounding reserve™ arising from the rounding of balances to Euro units,

\ ;P ts (lasses) brought forward
A" This item refers to the profits made by the Group in previous years that were not distributed.

-

Profit floss) for the year
This item shows the consolidated result for the yvear 2022 pertaining to the Group.

Negative reserve for ireasury shares in portfolio

The reserve refers o the value of the Parent Company’s treasury shares. On 22 November 2022, with deed volume no. 42.392,
file no. 25920, notary Giancarlo laccarino, Next Geosolutions Europe SpA acquired 100,000 treasury shares with a nominal value
of EUR 100,000 (EUR 1.00 per share). As required by OIC 28, the purchase cost of treasury shares was charged to the special
“Megative reserve for treasury shares in portfolio™,

Capital and minority interest
This item refers to the value of capital and reserves pertaining io minority sharcholders.

Minority profit (loss)
This item refers to the value of the result for the year pertaining 1o minority sharcholders.

Motes to the Financial Statements 18




NEXT GEOSOLUTIONS EURCPE S.P.A Consolidated financial slatements as at 31/12/2022

Provisions for risks and charges

Provisions for risks and charges have been allocated to cover liabilities whose existence is considered cenain or probable, but whose
amount or date of occurrénce could not be determined at vear-end.

The provisions were established in accordance with the principles of prudence and accrual. observing the requirements of accounting
standard OIC 31, The related provisions are recognised in the income statement for the vear in which they acerue, according 1o the
“by nature™ classification of costs.

The table below provides a breakdown of provisions for risks and charges as at 31 December 2022,

Description 31 December 2022
For taxes, even defemed 811,541
Total B11,541

Provision for deferred raxes

The “Provision for deferred taxes”, amounting 1o EUR 811,541, refers to temporary differences taxable in future vears, The main
temporary difference. which determined the recognition of the aforementioned provision, is represented by the profits on orders,
valuated with the percentage of completion method.

Emplovee Severance Indemnities

&, T.hc employee severance indemmity fund as at 31 December 2022 amounted to EUR 1,307.674.

d"i'hc amount of the provision is recognised net of advances paid and portions utilised for terminations of emplovment during the vear
% and represents the certain liability 10 employees at the date of closure of the financial statements.

31 December

2022

Employee severance indemnities 1,307.874
Total 1,307,874

Pavables

The table below gives a breakdown of payables as at 31 December 2022,

Description 31 December 2022
Payables to shareholders for loans 528,000
Payables to banks 28,098,118
Payables to ather lendess 1,008,171
Advances 51,413 D83
Payaties 1o suppiiers 13,768,800
Fayables 10 parent companies 3,897 541
Payables 1o undertakings controlled by (he parent comparnses 2
Tax payables B28 162
Payables 10 pension funds and social security instifutsons 172,414
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Consolidated financlal statements as al 3142/2022

Other payables 5ag 556
. _ Total 100,315,818
L
B
e o4
cls
€. Description Ialy Abroad
>~ Payables to sharchokders for loans 529,000 .
Amount dug within ong year B -
Amount due beyond one year within 5 years 520,000 -
Amount due after 5 years - -
Payables to banks 27,092 787 1,008,362
Amaunt due within one year 11,440 244 1,008,362
Amaount due beyond one year within 5 yaars 13,260,841 -
Amount due after 5 years 2,351,572 -
Payables to other lenders 1,006,171
Amount due within one year 329,521 -
Amount due beyond one year within 5 years 676,650 .
Amount due after 5 years - -
Advances 33,124,078 18,288, 884
amaunt dus within ane yaar 33,124,078 18,288 884
Amourd due beyond one year within 5 years - -
Amount due after 5 years = -
Payables to suppliers 6,577,752 7,191,138
Amount due within one year 6,577.752 7.191,138
Amount dug beyond one year within 5 years - -
Armount due after 5 years - -
Payables to parent companies
Amount due within one year 3,897,541 -
Amount due beyond one year within 5 years - -
Amount due after 5 years - -
Payables to undertakings controlled by the parent companies 2
Amount due within one year - 2

Amount due beyond one year within 5 years

Amount due after 5 years

Mates to the Financial Statements
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Description Italy Abroad
Tax payables 829,162 -
Amount due within one year 829,162 .
Amount due béyond cne year within § years . -
Amount due after 5 years - -
Payables to pension funds and social security Institutions 165,044 T.370
Amount due within one year 165, 044 7.370

Amount due beyond one year within 5 years - -

amount due beyond 5 years - -

Other payables 575,764 18,782
Amount due within one year 579,764 19,782
amoun! due bayond ane year within § years - -

Amount due after § years - -

_ Total 73,801,270 26,514,548

B Peyables to shareholders for loans

& “This item, amounting 1o EUR 520,000, refers to payabiles for ibans grantad by Mamawi Spa.

[ i '-I-"
ﬂf Payables to banks
Below is a breakdown of payables to banks as at 31 December 2022

Description Within 1 year Within § years Ower 5 years Total
Payabiles 1o banks overdrafts and shor-term advances B.421,782 - - B 421 782
Bank loans payable 4024814 13,280,541 2,361,572 18,677,327
Total payables to banks 12,446,608 13,250,941 2,361,672 28,099,119

Please nate that payables to banks are backed by the following guaraniess:

Backed
Backed by Not backed by
Description by other Total
g guarantees S
Payables 1o banks 4,008 168 B 24,092 851 28,098 118

The amount shown in the financial statements for payables 1w banks expresses the actual amount of principal, interest and ancillary
charges accrued as at 31 December 2022. During the year, the Group obtained new medium- and long-term loans in the amount of
EUR 10.600.000,

As at 31 December 2022, the financial covenants on the existing loan agreements were mel.

Pavables to other lenders

This item. amounting to EURL,006,171, refers to payables for finance leases outstanding as at 31 December 2022, which are
accounted for using the financial method in accordance with the provisions of accounting standard OIC 17 paragraphs 103-106,
Such
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payables. amounting to EUR 329.521. are due within the year and EUR 676.650 are due afier the following vear.

Advances

This item. amounting 1o EUR 51.413.%63, refers to advances and payments on account received from customers for the execution
of job orders,

Payables 1o suppliers
This item. amounting to EUR 13,768.890, refers to trade payables for the purchase of goods and services.

Favables to parent companies
This item., amounting to ELR 3,897,541, refers to trade payables to the parent company Marnavi SpA.

Payables 1o undertakings comrolled by the parent companies
*,, The item. amounting to EUR 2, refers to payables to Mamavi Shipping Management India Pvt Lid.
i
5 :?hx'pmxab.l’es
The itgm. amounting to EUR 829,162, mainly refers to VAT payables for EUR 564,530 and EUR 218,983 in payables 1o the tax
é«aumﬂﬂ‘ueﬁ for withholding taxes on employee and self-emploved income. These debts are regularly paid when due.

a___
Ed

"P'a_mb.fes 1o persion funds and social security institutions

The item, amounting to ELUR 172_4 14, mainly refers 1o payables for INPS contributions in the amount of EUR 161,136, These debts
are regularly paid when due.

Chher pavables
Payvables of a different nature from those previously disclosed are reclassified under this heading.

The item. amounting to ELIR 599,556, refers mainly 1o payvables to employees. including deferred charzes. in the amount of EUR
575,555,

Accrued expenses and deferred income

Accruals have been calculated on an accrual basis by allocating costs and/or revenues common to two financial yvears,

In the entry as well as in the review of deferred income. the existence or permanence of the time condition was verified. Where this
condition has changed. appropriate changes have been made.

31 December 2022

Agcrued spenses and defermed income 1,663,268

Total accrued expenses and deferred Income 1,663,269

Motes toa the Financial Statements
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The item, amounting to EUR 1,663,269, mainly refers to (i) the deferral of operating grants for invesumems in capital goods
pursuant to Article | Section 98, of (IL) Law No. 208 of 28 December 2015 and (ii) the deferral of grants for 4.0 investments
provided for by Article |, paragraphs 8 to 13, of (1) Law 232 of 11 December 2016, which participate in the result for the vear in
relation to the depreciation of the assets to which they refer Income Statement

Income Statement

The income statement shows the result for the vear.

It provides a representation of management operations by summarising the positive and negative income components that
contributed o the economic result. The positive and negative components of income. recorded in the financial statements in
accordance with Article 2423-bis of the (It.) Civil Code. are distinguished according 1o whether they belong 1o the various kinds of
management: core, accessory and financial,

Core business identifies the components of income generated by transactions that ocour on an ongoing basis and in the sector
relevant to the performance of operations. which identify and gualify the special and distinetive pan of the Group™s economic
activity.

Financial activities consist of transactions that generate income and expenses of a financial nature.

O a residual basis, ancillary activities consist of transactions that generate income components that are part of ordinary activities
_but are not part of ordinary business and financial activities.

3 -2 -
_'_;i For further details on the Group’s performance and results, please refer to the Repont on Operations.
By .

=,
.

- L

Value of production

SN }I'h&ﬁ_:’d}rlnf production as at 31 December 2022 is detailed below.

3) Changes in confract work in progress 12,739,904
5) Other revenues and income

Cparating grants 1,086 488
Other 781,754
Tedal other revenues and income 1,868,243
Total value of production 67,224,658

Revenues from sales and services

This item, amounting to EUR 52,616,354, shows the value of direct revenues from core business activities, The item “Revenues
from sales and services” includes only the revenues for which there is certainty of respective accrual, as they are definitively
recognised by the customer in terms of consideration for works and services performed in complianee with the agreed contractual
conditions,

As for revenues deriving from orders relating to works and services accounted for using the lump sum method, the invoices

determined in the contract constitute financial advances and are entered under the liabilities of the halance sheet in the ftem “D.6
Advances™.
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Revenues and income were recognised net of retumns, diseounts, allowances, and premiums. and net of taxes directly connected 1o
the provigion of services.

For further comments on revenue trends, please refer to the report on operations.

- Offshore renewable  54%

- Subsea cables 0%
- Offshore oil and gas  10%
- Other activities 6%,

Below please find the breakdown of revenues from sales and services by geographical area:
.« lhaly 4%
#'=  Abroad 52%
’ .1:l;€.&ange.'r in contract wark in progress
j" “*This item, amounting to EUR 12,739,901, relates to the change in contract work in progress, valuated using the percentage of
~ coinpletion criterion determined by the physical measurement methoed.
£
Other revenues and income
This item. amounting to EUR 1.868.243. mainly refers to: operating grants in the amount of EUR 1,868,243 related to;
= revenues for IRPEF relief pursuant to (It Law 30/9% in the amount of EUR 316.587;

*  revenues for other grants in the amount of EUR 769,902 related to (i) a research and development project carried out
in 2022; (ii) grants for operating expenses calculated in accordance with the law according to the cumulation eriterion
for grants and tax credits; (iii) other revenues from the recognition of the tax credit for investments in capital goods as
pravided for by Article |, Section 98, (It.) Law No. 208 of 28 December 2013 and (iv) to grants for the relief provided
for byArt.l. paragraphs 8 to 13, of {It.) Law 232 of 11 December 2016.

- other revenues and income of EUR 781.754. relating to insurance indemnities and revenues of a different nature than those
classified in the other items of production value.

Production costs

Costs and charges are allocated on an accrual basis and according to their nature, net of returns, allowances, discounts and premiums,
in accordance with the principle of correlation with revenues, and recorded in the respective items in accordance with the provisions
of accounting standard OIC 12, With regard 10 the purchase of goods, the related costs are recognised when the substantial and not
formal transfer of title has taken place, taking the wansfer of risks and benefits as the benchmark for the substantial transfer. In the
case of the purchase of services, the related costs are recognised when the service is received or rendered by the counterparty. while
in the case of continuous services, the related costs are recognised for the accrued portion.

Below is a breakdown of production costs as at 31 December 2022,

B) Production costs 31 December 2022
6) for raw, ancillary materials, consumable and goods 6.817 229
T} for serwcas 29,963,261
8) for leased assels 11,844 777
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) for persanmnel
a) wages and salanes T 266 481
b} social security charges SE8 011
©) severance indemnity 366,050
&) other cosis B
Total personnel costs 8,520,581
10} amortisation, depreciation and write-downs
&) amortisation of ntangible foced assets 745,043
b) depreciation of tangible fixed assets 1516.217
Total amonisation, depreciation and wrils-downs 2,261,260
11) changes in raw, ancillary materials, consumables and goods (922.197)
14) vanious operating charges 262764
: Total production costs 58,847,655
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= L
. For rene, ancillary materials, consumables and goods

This item, amounting to EUR. 6,817,229, refers mainly to purchases of fuel and lubricants for ships and vessels used by the Group.

.

=

L7

Far services

The item, amounting to EUR 29.963.261. mainly refers to costs for services rendered by subcontraciors in the context of job order

management, cosis of non-employee offshore personnel including expenses and other charges for their management, costs for
ordinary maintenance and consulting services.

For leased assets

This item, amounting to EUR 11,844,777, mainly refers to freight on ships used in the Group’s core business.

Far personnel

This item, amounting to EUR 8,620,561, mainly refers to costs for wages and salaries, social security charges and severance
indemnity for seafarers, technical and administrative staff, determined on the basis of existing contracts and reference regulations.

Amoriisation. depreciation and write-downs

This item, amounting to EUR 2,261,260, includes EUR 745.043 in amortisation of intangible assets and EUR 1.516.217 in
depreciation of tangible assets.

The table below details the amontisation of intangible assets.

Concessions
4 Fixed assets Other
Start-up and  Develop- licences,
: Goodwill under intangible fixed Total
expansion costs ment costs  trademarks, and
similar rights commirction S—.
Amartisation 1,374 155,072 30,373 436 059 - 122,165 T45,043

Details of depreciation of tangible assets are shown in the table below,

La tabella di seguito riporta il dettaglio degli ammortamenti delle immobilizzazioni materiali.
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Industrial and Fixed assets under
Land and buildings e ‘J:Tﬁ:‘. commaercial equi- Other assets  construction and Tatal
¥ pment advances
Amortisation 48 873 5071 Ta4 047 736,226 - 1516217

Changes in renw, ancillary materials, conswemablés and goods

This item. amounting to EUR 922,197, refers to the increase in inventories of raw, ancillary and consumable materials and goods for

the vear. As at 31 December 2023, these inventories consisted mainly of fuels and lubricants for the ships and vessels used by the

.~ Group. For further details on the composition of inventories, please refer to the section “Inventories™ in the Notes to the Financial
v “Statements.

e

¢ .l
':{"_ Farious aperating charges

b
i - This item. amounting 1o EUR 262,764, includes operating costs of a residual nature with respect to those previously disclosed. In

'+ particular, the item refers to losses on receivables of the Parent Company for EUR 142,828 and contributions, gifts, other taxes and
. oomiscellansous charges for the remainder.

Financial income and charges

Financial income and charges are recognised on an acerual basis in relation 1o the portion acerued during the year, Financial income
and charges as at 31 December 2022 are detailed below,

C) Financial income and charges 31 December 2022
1) other financial income
d) income other than above

other 1.570
Total income gther than above 1,570
Tetal other finencial income 14,900
17) interest and other financial charges
othar 643,058
Total interest and other financial charges 643,058
17-bis) exchange gains and losses {298.717)
Total financial Income and charges (15+18-17+-17-bis) {940,205)

Other financial income

This item. amounting to EUR 1.570. mainly includes bank interest collected.

Interest and other financial charges
This item. amounting to EUR 643.058. includes interest payable accrued on bank current accounts and mongage and loan payables.

Exchange gains and losses

This item, which shows an exchange loss of EUR 298,717, includes exchange gains and losses arising from the conversion of items
expressed in currencies other than the Euro.
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Income taxes for the year

Income taxes for the vear result from the calculation of taxes by linearly consolidated Group companies. They were calculated
on the basis of the current tax legislation and represent the amount of taxes pertaining to the financial vear to which the financial
statements refer.

Deferred tax liabilitics and assets denved from temporary differences between the values of asséts and habalities that are determined
according to the statutory criteria and the corresponding values recognised for tax purposes, as well as the carry-forward of tax losses.
Their valuation is made taking imo account the presumed tax rate that the Group is expected to incur in the vear in which these
differences will contribute 1o the formation of the tax result, considering the rates in force or already enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all the deductible temporary differences and for the carry-forward of tax losses, in compliance
with the principle of prudence and only if there is the reasonable certainty that, inm the vears when those differences will reverse.
there is taxable income no lower than the amount of the differences that are to be written off.

Details of the item are given below.

20) Current, deferred and prepaid income taxes 31 December 2022
Current taxes 122,327
Taxes for the previous years 638
Dafarred and prepaid taxes (73,507)
Total current, deferred and prepaid income taxes 49,456

" Additional information

Employment data
The 1able below provides details of the Group's workforce as at 31 December 2022, broken down by category,

Category 31 December 2022
Executives and middie 8
managers

Office employess T8
Other employeas 28
Total 115

Research and development activities

It is a constant practice and a well-established Group policy that of daily engaging in research and development activities aimed at
improving corparate processes and activities,

Compensation, advances, and credits granted to directors and statutory auditors and commitments undertaken on their
behalf

The following table shows the remuneration of the Parent Company s directors and statutory auditors (who are entrusted with the
statutory audith:

Directors  Statutory Auditors
Parent company 346,076 24 440

There are no advances or receivables and no commitments have been made on behalf of the directors and auditors of the Parent
Company and other Group companies.
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Categories of shares issued by the Group

The Parent Company s share capital consists of 500,000 ordinary shares with a nominal value of EUR 1.00. No shares have been
issued by the Parent Company and other Group companies that confer administrative and property rights other than these of
ardinary shares.

Securities issued by Group companies

The Group companies did not issue securities.

Financial instrumenis issued by the Group

The Group companies did not issue any financial instruments.

Commitments, guarantees, and potential liabilities not resulting from the Balance Sheet

It is noted that, as at 31 December 2022, there were no commitments, guarantees and contingent liabilities not disclosed in the
Balange Sheet. The guarantees given by the Group on the debts recorded are shown in the section “Payables to banks” of the Notes
to the Financial Statements.

Information on assets and financing allocated to a specific business
T'.I'r'_qu‘;-arn: no assets or financing earmarked for a specific business.

-

\

Information on transactions with related parties
Transactions with related parties took place during the vear; these transactions were concluded at normal market conditions.

The transactions with related parties. adequately described in the report on operations. were carried out under normal market
conditions and in the interest of the Group: therefore. no atypical or unusual transactions were carried out, that s 10 say outside the
scope of the company’s ordinary business or capable of significantly affecting the economic and financial position of the Group.

For details of transactions with related parties, of a financial and commercial nature, please refer to the report on operations,

Information on agreements not shown in the Balance Sheet

There are no agreements not shown in the Balance Sheet.

Information en significant events that occurred after the end of the year
For a description of significant events after the end of the financial vear, please refer to the Report on Operations.

Undertakings drawing up the financial statements of the largest group of which the Parent Company is a subsidiary

In accordance with the law, please find the information pursuant to Article 2427, paragraph 1. no. 22 quinguies and sexies) of the
(It.) Civil Code.

Larger ensemble
Company name Mamana Spa
City (if i Italy} or foreign country Maples
Tax code (for lialian companies) 01810820830
Place of filing of conschdated financial statements Maples
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Information on derivative financial instruments pursuant to Article 2427-bis of the (It.) Civil Code
The Group does not hold derivative financial instruments.

Summary statement of the financial statements of the company exercising management and coordination activities

Please note that the Parent Company is not subject 1o management and coordination activities.

Information pursuant to art. 1, paragraph 125, of (It.) Law of 4 Avugust 2017, no. 124

Pursuant to art. 1, paragraph 125, of (Tt.) Law of 4 August 2017, no. 124 and to art. 3-quater, paragraph 2, of (It.) Decree Law of
14 December 2018 no. 135, it should be noted that Group companies have benefited from aid subject 1o mandatory publication in
the National Register of State Aid. to which reference should be made for details.

Information on concessions received by the Parent Company

In 2020, the Parent Company obtained concession decree no, RO00352 of 12/03/2020 with obligation deed signed on 05.02.202 |
for the Project ARSO1_00682 titled “Autonomous robotics for the extended ship - ARES”™ for a total of € 4,761.046.46 and €
2,329,375 as company taking part in the project as a contribution to expenses, applied on the PON “Research and Innovation™
Funds 20014-2020 and FSC pursuant to and for the purposes of an. 13 of the Notice.

For those activities in 2022 it is due a contribution to expenses for EUR 176,743.71 and tax credit for Research and Development
for EUR 45,157.47 as per art. 3 of {It.) Decree Law of 23 December 2013, no. 145 converted, with amendments into (It} Law of
21 February 2014, no, 9 and in the connected (It} Ministerial Decree of 27 May 2015, amended by (1) Law 1602019 {Budget
Law 2020} by the MISE Transition 4.0 Ministerial Decree of 26 May 2020 and subsequently by art. | para. 1064 of (It.) Law
1782020 (Budget Law 2021). For companies operating in the south of Italy, (Ir.) Decree-Law of 19052020 no. 34, confirmed by
the Finance Act 2021 (It Law 178/2020). Art. | paragraph 183, provided for an increase of the Research and Development Tax
Credit. An. | para, 45 of the Budget Law 2022 (It Law no. 234/2021) extended and rescheduled the credit.

2021, for the Sustainable growth fund - Application sector “Smart Factory™ Project proposal no. 1874, known as “NSS2023-
Mext Smart System in the marine filed” presented by the company MNext Geosolutions Europe SpA., pursuant 1o (1L) Ministerial
Decres of 2 August 2019 and of the subsequent (1) Management Decree of 2 October 2019, the Company received the preliminary
report of the Ministry and obtained a contribution to expenses of EUR 2.000,354.01 and a subsidised loan of EUR 1.286,278.85.

For those activities in 2022 it obtained a contribution to expenses for EUR 447,272 20 and tax credit for Research and Development
for EUR 96,407.62 as per an. 3 of (IL) Decree Law of 23 December 2013, no. 145 converled, with amendments into (It.) Law
of 21 February 2014, no. 9 and the related Ministerial Decree of 27 May 2013, as amended by (It.) Law 1602019 (Budget Law
2020), the MISE Transition 4.0 DM of 26 May 2020 and subsequently by Art. | para. 1064 of (It.) Law 178/2020 {Budget Law
2021}). For companies operating in the south of laly. (It) Decree-Law of 19052020 no. 34. confirmed by the Finance Act 2021
(It Law 178/2020). Arv | paragraph 185, provided for an increase in the Research and Development Tax Credit. Art. | para. 45 of
the Budget Law 2022 (It. Law no. 234/2021) extended and rescheduled the credit.

The relative contributions and credits caleulated in accordance with the cumulation criterion pursuant to art. | paragraph 203 of
(It) Law 1602019, as amended by (It.) Law 178/2020 are a total of EUR 765.581.00, reported under “Tax Credits” in Balance
Sheet Assets and “Other revenue and proceeds” in the Income Statement, in compliance with the aceounting principle OIC 24 and
(Iuy Law no. 232 of 11 December 2016.

On 22/12/2022, the Company submitted the request. received with registration number 22122238211041225-000001. for the
tax credit for investments in the south of ltaly in the amount of EUR 276,772, related to investmemts in equipment of EUR
L, 107,089.00.

The related credit calculated pursuant to (1) Law 208/201 Samounts to a total of EUR 276,772, reported under *Tax Credits™ in
Balance Sheet Assets and *Other revenue and proceeds” in the Income Statement. in compliance with the accounting principle O1C
24 and (I} Law no. 232 of 11 December 2016,

In 2022, the Company took advantage of the 4.0 credit for the purchase of assets functional to the technological and digital
transformation of companies in accordance with the ‘Industry 4.0' model annexed to (It.) Law of 11 December 2016, no. 232 as
amended as per affidavits issued by the Appointed Surveyor. The related credit calculated according 10 the law is EUR 332,562.52
for an
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investment of EUR 831.406.30 under “Tax Credits™ in Balance Sheet Asscts and “Other revenue and proceeds™ in the Income
Statement. in compliance with the accounting principle O1C 24 and (Iv) Law no. 232 of 1] December 2016,

Application of the lax regime for ships registered in the International Registry and Tonnage T

With reference to the Parent Company. it should be noted that (It.) Law no. 30/98, supplemented by (It.) Law no. 488/1999, envisages,
for income deriving from the use of vessels registered in the lalian international naval register. chartered by the Company during
2022, the exclusion from taxation of 30% of taxable income for [RES purposes and the total exemption from [RAP. Furthermore,
for just one ship the Parent Company applies the so-called Tonnage Tax regime by which the income from that ship is taxed on a
lump sum basis. The Parent Company’s current income taxes are determined on the basis of an analytical forecast of the taxable
income for the year. taking into consideration the facilitated regime envisaged by (TL) Law no. 30/1998 and the Tonnage Tax.

Disclosure pursuant to European Law of 23 December 2021 no. 238

In 2022, the Parent Company used the amount of ELIR 26,248.00 relating 1o grants received as a ax credit connected 1o research
and development projects carried out during 2020 for the purposes envisaged by article 3 of (It} Decree Law 145/2013 converted
with amendments by (1) Law no. 972014, as amended by paragraph 35 of article | of (I1.) Law no. 190/2014 and subséguent
amendments and integrations. Those tax receivables were calculated on the basis of criteria illustrated in Circular 5E of 16 March
2016 by the Revenue Agency and subsequent amendments. During 2021, the Parent Company used the quota of EUR 271,250.00
of the contributions received as tax credit for the South as per (IL) Law 2082015 realised during 2021, it used the quota od EUR
99.872.52 as 4.0 loan for the purchase of the goods required for the technological and digital transformation of enterprises in
accordance with the “Industry 4.0” model included in (It.) Law of 11 December 2016, no. 232 and subsequent amendments and
additions, and EUR 14.923.48 of the contributions received as tax credit for the South as per (It.) Law 2082015 realised during
2021, and used the quota of EUR 27,776.77 of the contributions received as PPE tax credit for the year 2020, and EUR 5.420.00
as PPE tax credit for the vear 2021

Explanatory Notes, final part

These financial statements composed of the balance sheet, income statement. cash flow statement, accompanied by the notes 1o
the financial statements represent, in a truthful and correct way, the assets/Tiabilities and financial position, as well as the economic
result for the vear, and correspond to the results of the Group’s accounting records.

Maples, 31 March 2023

Giorgio Filippi, President [signature] ;
Giuseppe Maffia. Managing Director [signature] L gRE R :
Giovanni Ranieri, Managing Director [signature] St "
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